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Cohort is an AIM quoted independent
high technology business operating
in defence and related markets.

Its hallmarks are innovation,

agility and responsiveness.

It was formed in 2006 to acquire and
grow businesses providing independent
technical advice and a cost effective
and flexible supply of niche high
technology products and services.

It has three well established, wholly
owned subsidiaries providing a wide
range of services and products for UK
and international customers. Its main
activities are in defence but it also
supplies markets including security,
space and transport.




About Us

Cohort plcis the parent company for three innovative, agile
and responsive businesses operating in defence and related
markets. It aims to add real value through the experience and
contacts of its senior team while providing a light-touch but
effective governance framework. Its objective is to deliver
consistent and growing value to shareholders through its
three operating subsidiaries, MASS, SCS and SEA.

® MASS

MASS Consultants Limited (MASS) 15 a
systems house with a strong defence focus.

MASS designs, manufactures and supports
electromc systems and software, and provides
specialist services and traiming  Its core capabilities
are electronic warfare operational support,
commumcations and related electromic systems
and highly secure IT systems and software
applications Its commitment to ngorous quabty
procedures enables delivery against demanding
timescales, including many Urgent Operational
Requirements (UORs)

MASS was formed n 1983 and 15 based in

St Neots, near Cambndge, with an office in
Lincoln It currently has around 170 permanent
employees and 40 deployed associates

To read more on the MASS dvisien, visit our
site at mass co.uk

® SCS

Systems Consultants Services Limited
(5CS} is a technical advisory business

operating pnmarily 1n the defence and
security sectors.

SCS specialises in providing adwvisers with sound
techmical knowledge coupled with expenence

of its practical applicatron Its activities are very
dwerse including the management of major
exercises for the armed forces and providing
technical input to major projects.

SCS was formed n 1992 and 15 based 1n Theale,
Berkshire 1t currently has around 100 permanent
employees and 100 deployed associates

To read more on the SCS dwision, visit our
site at scs-ltd co uk




® SEA

SEA (Group) Limted (SEA) 15 a systems
engineering and software company
operating 1n defence, space and
transport markets.

SEA delivers systems engineering, software

and electronic engineenng services and solutions
to government and industry, including specialist
design and manufacture A core capability 1s
development of innovative electromc sensor
systems (including vibration, radar, sonar,
optical and laser devices)

SEA was formed 1n 1988 and 1s hased n Beckington,
near Frome, with offices in North Bristol (near MOD}
It currently has around 260 permanent employees

To read more on the SEA division, visit our
site at sea,co.uk

The accessible market for such services and products
is large because of growing technical complexity,
the outsourcing of scientific and technical expertise
by the Government to the private sector and the
consolidation of the supply chain, particularly

at prime and first tier level, all of which have increased
the need of the Government for independent sources
of advice and created new opportunities for niche
suppliers of technical services and products.

We aim to make targeted acquisitions of compames which
have good management and technology but which can
benefit from being part of a group with a larger balance
sheet and a wader customer base Our management approach
provides a high level of operating autonomy for subsidianes
whilst ensuring the degree of financial oversight required
for a quoted company and the exchange of information
and practices which make the Group greater than the sum
of 1ts parts.

Our Market Sectors

Defence

Security

Information systems
Space

Transport

Qur Clients

Our clients include the UK MOD, other UK Government
Departments, European Space Agency, NATO and a range of
industry customers including major international corporations.




Highhghts

For more on Cohort
cohortplc.com

Revenue up shightly at £78.1m (2009: £76.7m
- restated).

® Adjusted operating profit* down 34% to £4.1m.

® Adjusted earmings per share down 37% at

8.10 pence.

Proposed final dividend up 17% at 1.4 pence
per share.

& Continued profitable growth at MASS.

® Acquisition by MASS of Abacus EW, a specialist in

land electronic warfare training, on 14 May 2010
for an 1imtial cash consideration of £1.0m.

Consohdation and refocus of defence activities
at SEA.

Major restructunng and new MD appointed at SCS.

* Adjusted operating profit 1s operating profit excluding amortisation of
other intangible assets and exceptional 1tems

Revenue

£78.1m

571
767
781

344

5 8 2 e
Adjusted operating profit
f4.1m .
s 2 g e
QOrder book at 30 Apnl
£112.7m
n 5
5 2 2 e
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Chairman’s Statement

Nick Prest CBE Chairman

Summary of Chairman’s Statement

® SCS has moved into a new office in
Theale which will facilitate wmproved
working practices

® SEA has had a record year for order
intake of £39 2m, and has made
particularly good progress in 1ts
Space dwision

® MASS posted record figures for
sales, profits, cash generation and
order intake

® MASS completed the acquisition of
Abacus EW, an Electronic Warfare
training company

Cohort has expenenced a difficutt

year, with accounting problems and

a sigmificant deteroration n trading
performance at SCS SEA also performed
below expectations On the positive side
MASS performed strongly and the Group
has closed the year with a record order
book, wiich provides a basis for a
recovery in profitability

Key financials

In the year ended 30 Apnl 2010,

Cohort posted revenue of £78 1m

{2009 £76 7m) This included revenue

of £26 4m (2009 £29 2m) from Systems
Consultants Services Lirmted (SCS), £21 5m
(2009 £20 6m) from MASS Consultants
Limited (MASS) and £30 2m (2009 £26 9m)
from SEA (Group) Limited (SEA} Both
MASS and SEA grew their revenues but
SCS suffered a decline in sales from 2009
as a result of more difficult market
conchtions and withdrawal from
unprofitable areas of actiity

The Group's adjusted operating profit
was £4 1m (2009 £6 3m) This included
adjusted operating profit from 5CS of
£0 1m (2009 £1 5m), from MASS of £3 5m
(2009 £2 9m) and from SEA of £1 6m
(2009 £3 1m) Cohort Group overheads
were £1 1m (2009 £1 2m)

The Group operating profit of £2 9m
(2009 £5 Om) was after charging £0 7m
n respect of relocation and restructunng

Profit before tax was £2 7m (2009 £4 6m)
and profit after tax was £2 3m (2009 £3 8m)

“The Group has closed the year with a record
order book, which provides a basis fora
recovery in profitability.”

02 Cohort ple Annual Repart and Accounts 2019

Basic earmings per share were 5 63 pence
{2009 9 28 pence) Adjusted earmings per
share were 8 10 pence (2009 12 83 pence)
The adjusted earmings per share were
based upon profit after tax, excluding
amortisation of other intangible assets,
exceptional items and share of result

of joint ventures

The net funds at year-end were £3 Om
(2009 £3 7m) after the purchase by MASS
of 1ts new building for £3 Om

Dividends

The Board 1s recommending a final
dwidend of 1 4 pence per ordinary share
(2009 1 2 pence), making the full year
dividend n respect of the year ended

30 Apnil 2010 of 2 05 pence per ordinary
share (2009 1 75 pence), a 17% increase
This wiil be payable on 8 September 2010
to shareholders on the register at

6 August 2010 subject to approval at the
Annual General Meeting on 2 September
2010 The Board continues to maintain

a progressive dividend policy

SCS

SCS had a very difficult year, uncovering
sigmificant accounting errors which had
disguised a detenioration in prefitablity
caused by a combination of overhead
cost increases, under-utilisation of core
consulting staff, pricing pressure and
the assumption of new business at
nadequate margins

Stanley Carter led a major restructunng
of 5CS 1n the final quarter of the financial
year which has reduced the cost base
signmficantly, reducing the annual payroll




cost by £2 Om We expect a much
improved performance from 5CS 1n
the current year

SCS has moved into a new office n
Theale which provides a better working
environment for the business and will
facihitate improved working practices
From 1 June 2010, Andy Thoms took over
from Stanley as acting Managing Director
of SC5 As announced 28 June 2010,

Bill Bird wall be joimng SCS as full time
Managing Director from 6 September
2010 Bill bas considerable expenence

1n the defence and consultancy sectors

SEA

SEA underperformed aganst 1ts financial
targets 1n the year, pnmanly as a result
of cost increases on a small number of
fixed price contracts and slower order
ntake 1n some areas A re-orgamsation
has been effected which has resulted

n closure of the loss making Offshore
division and a restructuring of the three
defence divisions 1nto two At the same
time management systems have been
modified to ensure tighter project contro!
SEA has had a record year for order intake
of £39 2m, has made particularly good
progress 1n 1ts Space division, and overall
has a strong customer offenng We expect
1ts financial performance to improve n
the current year

MASS

MASS traded strongly 1n the year and
posted record figures for sales, profits,
cash generation and order intake

The company will move nto 1ts new
premises in the near future and 15 well

placed to build further on 1ts good
position Shortly after the end of the
financial year MASS completed the
acquisitton of Abacus EW, an Electromc
Warfare training company based near
MASS at Lincoln Abacus EW Consultancy
Limted {Abacus EW) brings additional
capability and export customers to the
MASS presence n the Electronic Warfare
support market

Board and personnel

There were no changes to the

Cohort Board in the course of the year
The Executive team responded well to a
difficult senes of problems Stanley Carter
stepped n as Managing Director of SCS
n December and the Board 15 grateful
to ham for his work 11 overseeing the
necessary restructunng On behalf of
the Board | would like to thank all our
employees for their hard work and
dedication during a none too easy
penod for Cohort

Outlook

Followtng a very good year for order intake
with total orders of £143 6m (2009 £65 7m)
the Group order book at 1 May 2010 stood
at £112 7m (2009 £47 2m) This provides
a good platform for the future

The difficulties encountered at 5CS,

and to a lesser extent at SEA, are a
matter of regret to the Board All
shareholders, Beard, staff and external
stakeholders have been affected

The absolute prionty 1s to return the
Group to a satisfactory tevel of operating
performance, which will in tum open up
wider strategic options for the business

“The Executive team
responded well to a
difficult series of problems.”

Cohort obtawns approximately 70% of

1ts business from the UK defence market,
directly or indirectly, and there are
obvious uncertainties for the direction

of this market generated by the overall
climate for UK public expenditure and the
Strategic Defence and Secunty Review
(SDSR) currently being conducted by the
UK Government 8ut the proportion of
Cohort's bustness betng derved from
outside the UK defence market (prnincipatly
export defence, space and transport) 1s
increasing and the Board’s view 1s that
the SDSR can provide apportunities for
mmble, cost effective compames such

as Cohort We expect to be able to trade
satisfactonly through the review penod
and grow our business when the
landscape becomes clear

Nick Prest CBE
Chairman
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Chief Executive’s Review

Andrew Thomis Chief Executive

Summary of Chief Executive’s Review

® Qur businesses are leaner and better
equipped for the challenges ahead

® The restructured SCS 15 now on a much
firmer footing

® SEA’s submanine and space businesses
grew sigmificantly

® MASS has once again had a record year,
with some significant orders, notably
the £55m contract to provide techmical
support to the MOD

04 Cohort plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010

This has been a challenging year for Cohort
In December 2009 it became apparent
that SCS's financial performance n 2008/9,
as published n our Annual Report and
Accounts, had been sigmficantly overstated
This left us wath three iImmedsate 15sues
wdentifying the cause and extent of the
erraor, putting corrective measures in
place and dealing wath the operating
problems that had been obscured by the
overstatement We reported on progress
1n addressing these 1ssues both n our
Interim Results on 9 December 2009 and
n our Business and Trading Update on

18 March 2010 Although there 1s still
work to do, the restructured SCS with

a new Managing Director apponted and
its cost base significantly reduced, 1s

now onh a much firmer footing

Despite a prormising start to the year

SEA too has also expenenced operating
problems, as a result of project difficulties
and slower than anticipated order intake
in some areas We have responded by
withdrawing from loss-making activities
and rationalising our actmties 1n the
marine sector into a single division

As a result, SEA too goes into the new
financial year on a more sohd basis

The year has also seen some major
successes MASS has once again had a
record year, with some significant orders,
notably the £55m contract to provide
techmcal support to the MOD SEA’s
Space business continued 1ts rapid and
profitable growth, and the company won
a strategically important order to provide
the External Communication System for
Astute submannes SCS has seen strong
performance 1n 1ts Logistics activities

The record order book at the year-end
provides a good base far the 2010/11
financial year

Group overview

Cohort 15 an independent group whose
constituent compames provide a wide
range of techmcal advice, support,
managed serices and certain niche
products, the latter charactensed

by high-tech design and low volume
manufacture Our approach has been

to maximise the autonomy afforded to
our subsidiary companies, allowing them
the space to be 1nnovative, responsive to
customer needs, and agile in their market
positioming At the same time we have
sought to provide advice, mentonng and
business development support from the
strong Cohort central team, and give
customers the confidence to place large
orders with us that they might have been
reluctant to award to smaller pnvately
owned businesses

We have looked hard at this basic concept
as a result of the operating problems that
have ansen and have concluded that it
remains fundamentally sound

Nevertheless we have significantly
enhanced our central financial controls and
momtonng procedures to ensure there 1s no
repetition of the events of last December
We have also appointed a new auditor,
KPMG, with the aim of providing additional
confidence to shareholders and the Board
Work continues to 1mprove SC5's internat
processes and controls under close
supervision from Cohort This supervision
will be sustained until we are certain
that the 1ssue has been fully resolved




In August, Cohort’s executive team will
relocate from its Henley-on-Thames office
to make use of spare capacity at 5CS's
new leased facility in Theale

Trading subsidiaries

SCS

As reported extensively elsewhere 1n
this Report, SCS has had a difficult year
but has nevertheless seen continuing
profitabte growth 1n some areas of 1ts
actmity, including support engineenng
and logistic information systems

It was a pleasing indication of customer
confidence to be awarded a further year's
extension to the long running training
support contract at the UK's Permanent
Joint Headquarters valued at £2 Zm

The company has recently moved

from its offices in Henley-on-Thames

to Theale, south of Reading With a
significantly reduced cost base and a
new and expenenced Managing Director
appointed, 5CS 1s well placed to face
the challenges and uncertainties of the
current defence market

SEA

SEA grew 1ts revenue again after a

record year n 2008/9, acheving turnover
of £30 2m, up 12% One major coentnbutor
to this was its space business, which won
a number of orders for European Space
Agency programmes and achieved sales
well in excess of expectations SEA's
submanne business also grew sigmficantly,
thanks to a large and strategically
important, order for a commumcations
system SEA’s profitability was affected
by problems on some of 1ts projects,

n particular a loss-rmaking contract for

a customer 1n the offshore sector, as well
as slower than expected order ntake in its
transport business Profit was £1 6m, down
from its record level of £3 1m 1n 2008/9

Towards the end of the year, SEA carned
out a restructuring exercise, rationalising
several of 1ts divisions to reduce cost and
refocus 1ts activities 1n the defence sector
and withdraw from unprofitable activaties
With a strong order book 1t 1s positiched
to deliver an improvement n performance
n 2010/11

MASS

MASS has had another record year,

with revenue of £21 5m and a trading
profit of £3 Sm Good performance was
achieved n all three of its divisions
With support from Cohort, 11 May MASS
acquired Abacus EW Consultancy Limited,
a Lincoln-based EW training business
Abacus EW 1s an excellent match for
MASS's existing business n this area
and brings with it new capabilities,
customers and opportumties

MASS"s continuing growth has meant 1t has
become ncreasingly compressed within its
St Neots headquarters The company has
now acquired a new and larger facility
adjacent to its existing building that wll
provide 1t with a long-term home, with
optiens for expansion 1f needed

Outlook

We have taken action to deal with the
problems that have emerged over the last
year As a result our businesses are leaner
and better equipped for the challenges
ahead Nevertheless, UK defence, and
public sector spending more widely,

face a turbulent time under the new
Government, with a Strategic Defence
and Secunity Review underway and

a tough new approach to spending
commitments There will certamnly be
risks for Cohort It 1s possible that crude
spending curbs might be ntroduced

that could affect all defence suppliers,
though histoncally these have never
been long-lasting Our operaticnal
modet, which focuses on customer-
friendly, strategically mmble businesses
with high-tech capabilities and fast
decision-making, 1s better suited to

this new environment than any of the
alternatives Although we have some
exposure to defence programmes that
may be subject to delay, cancellation

or cutbacks, much of our work tends to
focus on short-term operational needs
which have ahigh pnonty and are
unbkely to go away The international
situation remams tense and unstable

in many regions of the world, and our
export activities are growing There

will be domestic opportunities too as
government seeks to rationalise its areas
of actmwty, apportunities will emerge for
businesses like ours which can carry out
the same activities with greater flexability
and cost-effectiveness Not least, we go
into the new financial year with a record
order backlog of well aver £100m Overail
| am confident that we will emerge
strongly from the uncertainties of the
coming months, ready to take swift
advantage of opportumties, and to thrive
when the new landscape becomes clear

Andrew Thomis
Chief Executive

“I am confident that we will emerge strongly
from the uncertainties of the coming months,
ready to take swift advantage of opportunities,
and to thrive when the new landscape

becomes clear.”
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Finance Director’s Review

Simon Walther Finance Dwrector

The following review explains 1n further
detail the significant financial 1ssues ansing
dunng the year ended 30 Apnl 2010 and
mghhghts other matters aver and above
what 15 included in the primary financial
statements and accompanying notes

Prior year restatement

The pnor year restatement of the Group’s
result for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009

15 analysed n detail in note 10 to the
financial statements as well as in

other notes

The pnor year restatement arose from
a senes of errors 1n the Group’s subsichary
SCS, resulting 1n an overstatement of
amounts recoverable on contracts for the
year ended 30 Apnl 2009 of £1,837,000

All comparative figures for the year
ended 30 Apnl 2009 have been restated
accordingly The highlight restatement
figures were as follows

£ 000

Reduction in revenue 1,837
Reduction in profit before tax 1,837
Reduction in amounts recoverable

on contracts 1,837
Reduction in tax charge 514
Reduction wn tax creditor 514

The tax adjustment to the pror year
restatement of £514,000 15 28% of
£1,837,000

The restatement was independently
reviewed by KPMG  No restatement was
required for the year ended 30 Apnil 2008

The 1mpact on the Group's comparative
effective tax rates for the total Group tax
charge and the current tax charge for the
year ended 30 Apnl 2009 1s set out in the
table below

The overstatement of amounts

recoverable on contract arose from errors

on fixed pnce contracts as follows

1 ncorrect transfer of data from SC5's
old accounting system to its new
accounting system,

N errors in posting transactions,

n

a failure to properly review at regular
intervals the amounts recoverable on
contract for recoverability, and

v a fatlure to review and check cost
to complete projections with project
management

These errors were 1dentified by
management 1n November 2009 and
the Cohort Board confirms there 1s no
evidence of intentional misstatement
by the 5CS management

SCS replaced 1ts head of finance at the
time of 1dentifying the error

Since uncovering the error which

masked the underlying poor operational
performance, 3CS has ended 1ts loss-making
actwities and carred out a major
restructuring and cost reduction exercise
The total number of staff was reduced
from almost 140 at the beginning of
2009/10 financial year to below 100

?e impact on the Group’s comparative effective tax rates for the total Group tax charge and the current tax charge
0

r the year ended 30 Apri| 2009

As previously

reparted  Restatement As restated

£'000 £ 000 £7000

Profit before tax 6,454 (1,837) 4,617
Total tax charge 1,372 {514) 858
Effective tax rate (%) 213 18 6
Profit before tax 6,454 (1,837) 4,617
Current tax charge 1,299 (514) 785
Effective tax rate {%) 201 170

06 Lohort ple Annual Report and Accounts 2010




It 15 also undertaking an overhaul of
its business processes The pronty
processes are

1 IN¥oI1cing,

n fixed price contract revenue and
profit recogmition,

m project review, and
I project control

Revenue

The segmental analysis (note 1) presents
the Group’s revenue by subsidiary

The revenue 15 further analysed as
shown 1n the table below

The significant changes n revenue for
the year ended 30 April 2010 compared
with the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 are
an increase n Aerospace {mawnly Space)
by 95% and a fall i Transport of 25%,
the latter reflecting the completion of a
major contract for Transport for London
during the year ended 30 Apnl 2010

Defence revenue overall has remained
virtually level with a fail in MOD revenue
of 3%, offset by a nse 1 export defence
revenue of 23%

The analysts of revenue for the year ended
30 April 2009 has been restated (see note
10) reducing revenue by just over £1 8m
from the previousty reported £78 6m to
£76 7m This adjustment has been reflected
n the table below by a reduction 1n

revenue direct to the UK MOD of £1 1m
and indirect to the UK MOD by £0 7m
and also a reduction of £1 8m

n advisory services

Adjusted operating profit

The adjusted operating profit 1s presented
to reflect the trading profit, of the Group
and excludes amaortisation of other
intangible assets and exceptional 1tems
This allows the Group to present 1ts
trading performance in a consistent
format year on year

The adjusted operating profit 15 stated
after charging the cost of share-based
payments of £259,000 (2009 £184,000)
whch 15 allocated to each business i
proportion to 1ts employee participation
n the Group's share option schemes

The adjusted operating profit of SEA
{and the Group) 15 after a net charge
of £231,000 (2009 credit of £47,000)
m respect of marking forward foreign
exchange contracts to market at

30 Apnl 2010 The forward foreign
exchange contracts are used to hedge
the forward sales of currency on Euro
denominated trading contracts

Looking forward, the cost base of 5C5
has fallen as a result of the restructunng
dunng this year with an annual saving

of £2 Om The moving of SCS from 1ts
previous facibity 1 Henley-on-Thames

to a more appropnate facility in Theale

ncreases 1ts operating cast by approxamately

£0 2m per annum

At MASS, the moving of the business

n St Neots from 1ts present leased office to
a bespoke freehold facility will increase
1ts annual operating cost by £0 2m

per annum

SEA’s cost base 1s not expected to
change significantly with cost savings
n loss makang divisions being offset by
Investment n other growing divisions,
espectally Aerospace and Manne

Exceptional items (see note 3)
The key 1tems charged as exceptional
1tems were as follows

® Restructuring cost at $CS of £0 3m
In addition to the removal of 26 posts
as a result of redundancy, further
natural wastage has reduced core staff
levels from nearly 140 people to below
100, producing an expected annualised
cost saving of £2 Om

® Restructunng at SEA compnses
redundancy costs from the rationalisaticn
of the Offshore division and the three
Defence divisions into two Manne, and
Land and &ir The cost of £0 1m
reduced the headcount by eight The
annualised saving from this restructunng
1s expected to be £0 4m In addition,
£0 Zm of stock wnte off 1n respect
of Offshore products was charged
as an exceptional 1tem

® Relocation costs at MASS of over £0 1m
have been recognised as an exceptienal
1tem due to ther one-off nature

2009
2010 restated
By sector Em % Em %
Direct to the UK MOD 40 3 43 2
Indirect to the UK MOD, where the Group acts as a sub-contractor or partner 168 156
Total ta the UK MOD 571 73 58 8 77
Export defence customers 75 61
Total defence revenue 64 6 83 64 9 85
Transport 34 45
Space 82 42
Cther commercial 19 3
Non-defence revenue 135 17 118 15
Total revenue 78 1 100 767 100
2009
2010 restated
By type of work £m % £m %
Technology solutions 345 44 303 40
Adwvisory services 170 22 202 26
Manpower provision 116 15 18 15
Managed services 98 13 90 12
Product 52 6 54 7
Total revenue 78 1 100 767 100
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Finance Director’s Review continued

Tax

The Group’s tax charge for the

year ended 30 Apnl 2010 of £457,000
(2009 £858,000) was at an effective
rate of 16 6% of profit before tax

(2009 18 6%) This includes a current
year corporation tax charge of £961,000
(2009 £785,000), a rate of 35 0% of profit
before tax (2009 12 7%), a pnor year
tax charge of £135,000 (2009 £Mil)

and a deferred tax credit of £639,000
(2009 charge of £73,000)

The reported current tax rate 1s higher
than the standard rate {see note 7) due
to disallowed 1tems (for tax purposes),
n partrcular general provisions,
amortisation of other \ntangible assets
and prudent recegmtion of research
and development (R&D) tax crediis
The effective current tax rate, after
taking account of appropnate deferred
tax 1tems 1n respect of the current year
1s approximately 22%

The Group’s overall tax rate was below
the standard corporation tax rate of 28%
The majonty of the reduction 1n the
effective rate of tax was due to the
recognition of brought forward tax losses
at SEA and R&D credits at MASS and SEA
for the year ended 30 Apnl 2010

The Group’s businesses are only allowed
to claim the lower R&D tax credit
allowance available to larger compames,
currently 30% This accounts n part for
the higher current year corporation tax
rate compared with 2009 when the Group

08 Cohortplc Annual Report and Accounts 2010

was able to receive the larger relief
avallable to smaller and medium sized
entities for the penod from 1 August 2008
to 30 Apnil 2009

Looking forward, the Group’s overali

tax charge will continue to nise for this
reason Nevertheless, | would expect

the Group tax charge to remain at or
slightly above 20% and certainly below
the standard rate of 28%, based upon
expected R&D spend and reliefs remaining
available The Group retains a prudent
position 1n respect of R&D tax credits
previously claimed

The impact on the Group of the recent
budget announcement by the Government
to reduce headline corporation tax rates
over the next four years cannot be fully
determined until the RE&D tax credit
regime going forward 15 known

Provisions
The Group's provisions at 30 Apnl 2010
are as per note 19

The Group’s provisions have increased
by 68% since 30 April 2009 reflecting a
number of specific 1ssues and prudence
1n cost to complete recogmition on fixed
price contracts

Specific provision changes, accounting
for £0 ém of the £1 Om overall increase
In provisions, were as follows

& provision against the NASNET contract
at SEA,

® provision for an onerous lease at MASS
for 1ts leased property th 5t Neots,

#® redundancy provisien at 5CS, and
® other property related provisions

Accounting policies

The following standards, and changes

to existing standards and interpretations,
are relevant to these financial statements

@ Revised IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations
and amendments to IAS 27 - these
standards are applicable for accounting
penods commencing after 1 July 2009
but have been adopted early from
1 May 2009 These standards affect
the future accounting for acquisitions
and transactions There 1s no
retrospective 1mpact

® Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation
of Financial Statements’ - these
amendments revise requirements
for the presentation of the financial
statements and do not affect the
Group's overall reported results

® Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based
Payments Vesting Conditions and
Cancellabions' - these amendments
concern certain aspects of the
valuation of share-hbased payments
and the mpact of a cancellation by
a grantee These amendments have
not had a sigmificant 1mpact on
the charges recogmsed to date
for share-based payments




® Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments Disclosure’ - these
amendments require additional
disclosure of the basis of fair value
measurements and Liquidity nisks
Note 21 reflects these additional
disclosure requirements

® |[FRS 8 '‘Operating Segments’ - this
standard amends the requirements for
disclosure of segmental performance
and does not have any effect on the
Group’s overall reported results Note 1
reflects the new requirements

® Amendment to 1AS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’
- the amendment generally elirmnates
the option to expense borrowing
costs attnbutable to the acquisition,
constructien or production of a
qualifying asset as incurred, and
instead requires the capitalisation
of eligible borrowing costs as part of
the cost of the specific asset There
15 no sigmificant 1mpact, as the Group
generally funds qualifying assets from
gross cash resources and consequently
does not have significant eligible
borrowing costs

The Group does not consider that,

any other standards, amendments or
mnterpretations 1ssued by the 1ASB, but
not yet applicable, will have a sigmificant
impact on the financial statements

One key area of management judgement
15 revenue recogmucn and more especially
profit recogmtion on long term fixed price

contracts This Judgement s reflected in
the level of work 1n progress and especially
contract accruals and provisions

The other key area of judgement 1s

where work 1s undertaken on behalf of
customers pnor to formal contract award
This work 15 only taken to the balance
sheet, for subsequent charging to cost of
sales, when revenue 1s recogmsed where
the prospect of contract award 1s virtually
certain This level of work 15 relatively
low across the Group amounting to £0 5m
of work 1n progress at 30 Apnl 2010

Treasury facilities
At 30 Apnl 2010 the Group had facilities
with 1ts banking provider, RBS as follows

Term at

commencement

Em of facility

Qverdraft facility 25 364 days
for working capital

requirements

Structured debt 100 364 days

facility for with 3 year

acqunsitions term out

Of the structured debt facility of £10 Om,
£3 0m was drawn to part finance the
acquisition of SEA and remains drawn
at 30 Apnl 2010 The £2 5m overdraft
facility was not drawn at 30 Apnil 2010
In addition, the Group has £0 ém of
mortgage debt with RBS which was
acquired with SEA

The Group’s facibities are due for renewal
in October 2010 and the Board expects
them to be renewed

At 30 Apnil 2010, the Group had n place
forward foreign exchange contracts to
sell Euro 13 Om at a Pound sterling
equivalent value of £11 4m These
forward contracts are used by the Group
to manage its nsk exposure to fareign
currentcy on trading contracts where

1t eicher or both receives and pays
currency from customers and suppliers
respectively These forward exchange
centracts are entered into when customer
contracts are considered effective The
Group does not enter nto speculative
foreign exchange dealing

Exposure to interest and foreign
exchange nsk in not a sigmficant nsk
of the Group wath the Group having net
funds The Group’s foreign exchange
exposure, primanly at SEA and relating
to receivables from the European
Space Agency (ESA), 1s hedged using
forward contracts

The Group’s bank covenants were all
satisfied at 30 April 2010 and based
uponits latest internal forecasts the
Group does not anticipate any breaches
The covenants are assessed quarterly with
a measured and reported twelve month
lock back and an assessment of the next
twelve months

The Group takes a prudent approach

to treasury policy with 1ts overriding
objective being protection of capital

In )implementing this policy, deposits are
held with at least AA rated institutions
and deposits are generally placed on
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Finance Director’s Review continued

Treasury facihities (continued)

short (less than three months) duration
to matunty This matches the Group’s
cash resources wath its internal 13 week
cash forecasts retaining flexibibty whilst
trying to ensure an acceptable return
onits cash All of the Group’s cash 15
managed through a set-off arrangement
enabling the most efficient use of the
Group’s cash from day to day, under
the supervision of the Group's

finance function

Deposit rates dunng 2009/10 have been
low, typically below 0 4% compared with
the Group’s weighted nterest rate on
1ts borrowings of 3 7% The Group has
retained its debt dunng the penod
despite the unfavourable comparative
Interest rates to ensure 1t has had
facilities available to support its working
capital demands, nvest 1n new facilities
during 2069/10 and acquire Abacus EW
n May 2010 The small size of the Abacus
EW acquisitton was best suited to cash
settiement rather than equity which
would have been relatively expensive
and dilutive at the current share price

The Group's hqundity remains good

with profit conversion to cash remaining
above 100% (see KPl measures below)

The Group has histoncally had low levels of
working capital with many of its contracts
being less than one year 1n duration and
reliability of 1ts customer base making

10 Cohort plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010

debt nsk low Dunng 2010, working
capital levels have nsen siightly,
as descnbed below

Goodwll and other intangible assets
The Group has recogmised goodwill and
other intangible assets n respect of the
acquisition of MASS and SEA (see note 11)
The other intangible assets are 1n respect
of contracts acquired n each case and
are to be amortised over the life of

the earmngs associated with the
contracts acquired

The goodwll, which 1s not subject to
amortisation but to annual impairment
testing, anses from the intangible
elements of the acquired businesses

for which either the value or life 1s not
readily derived This includes, but 1s
not limited to, reputation, customer
relations, contacts and market
synergies with existing Group members
The goodwll relating to the acquisitions
of MASS and SEA has been tested for
impairment as at 30 April 2010 and

no imparment 1s to be recogmised 1n
either case As highlighted n note 11,
the /mpairment test for the goodwill 1n
respect of SEA1s more sensitive to the
Group's weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) with no impairment at the Group's
WACC of 11 5% Aslight imparment

(£0 3m) 1n the SEA goodwill would anse
1f the WACC increased to 13 5%

Working capital

The working capital of the Group,
defined as inventory plus trade and other
recevables less trade and other payables,
has nsen from £6 6m net assets {after
adjusting for the prior year restatement)
to £8 1m net assets, an increase of £1 5m
(23%), despite only a 2% nse n revenue
The ncrease 1n working capital was
primaniy due to the unwinding of
advance recewpts and increasing work

in progress, particularly at SEA in respect
of work with the ESA where supplier
payments have been delayed by internal
ESA 1s5ue5

The year-end days’ debtors 1n sales have
decreased shightly from 52 days in 2009 to
50 days n 2010 This calculation 1s based
upon dividing the revenue by month,
working backwards from April into the
trade debtors balance {exciuding unbilled
ncome and work wn progress) at the
year-end, a more appropriate measure
than calculating based upon the annual
revenue as It takes into account the
heavy weighting of the Group’s revenue
n the last quarter of each year

The Group has a working capital facility
of £2 5m with RBS which was not utilised
durning the year The Group had cash

at 30 Apnl 2010 of just over £6 6m

{2009 £7 5m) Advance receipts on
contracts at the year-end were £1 7m
{2009 £2 5m)



Key performance indicator Descriphion 7010 2009

Change in revenue Change  total Group revenue 2% 34%
compared to the prnior year

Change in adjusted Change n Group profit before tax, amortisation (34%) 3%

operating profit

of other intangible assets, share of result of joint
ventures and exceptional 1items

Order book visibility

Orders for next financial year expected to be delwvered

58% cover on 48% cover on

as revenue, presented as a percentage of consensus forecast 2011 forecast 2010
market revenue forecasts for the year revenue revenue
of £76 7m of £82 3m
Change in adjusted earnings Annual change in earmings per share, (37%) (12%)
per share before amortisation of other intangible assets,
share of result of Joint ventures and exceptional items
Operating cash conversion Net cash generated from operations before 155% 166%

tax as compared to the profit before tax

The Group generated £4 Om of cash from
operating activities (operating profit was
£3 ém before amortisation of intangible
assets) which was offset by investment
of £4 Om 1n fixed assets and investments
The net cash outflow reflected the
dividends paid of nearly £0 8m

The indicators shown 1n the table
above have been tdentified by the
Directors as giving the best overall
indication of the Group's long-term
success Revenue growth gives a
quantified indication of the rate at

which the Group's business activity
15 expanding The adjusted profit
trend prowvides an indication of
whether additional revenue 15 being
gained without profit margins being
compromised, and whether any
acquisitions are value enhancing
Order book wvisibility, based upon
expected revenue dunng the year to
come, provides a measure of confidence
n the hikelihood of achievement of
future forecasts Change in adjusted
earnings per share 15 an absolute
measure of the Board's management

of the Group's return to sharehclders,
including tax and interest Operating
cash conversion measures the ability
of the Group to convert profit to cash

The performance mdicators for the
year ended 30 Apnl 2009 have been
restated for the correction of the

overstatement at SCS (see note 10)

Simeon Waither
Finance Director
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Operations Review: MASS

Ashley Lane Managing Director MASS

MASS Consultants Limited (MASS) has
concluded another ighly successful year
with trading profit exceeding £3m for the
first time  All three of MASS's divisions
{Managed Services, Systems Development
and Electromc Warfare (EW) Operational
Support) performed well

Early in the year the Managed Services
dviston won its first Building Schools
for the Future programme to provide
infermation technology for North
Lincolnshire, and towards the end of
the year, 1t renewed an important MOD
n-service-support contract valued at
£55m over the next nine years

The Systems Development division made
good progress with its goals of adding
new customers and ncreasing its
presence In areas of National Secunty
Other successes included delvery of
avionics test ngs for the Future Air Tanker
further strengthening the partnership
with Thales, delivery of a new secure
commumcations system for the Tornado
aircraft, and a number of contract wins
focused on protecting platferms and
people both wathin the UK and 1n
operational theatres around the world

MASS has concluded another highly successful
year with trading profit exceeding £3m for the

first time.
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The EW Operational Support division has
continued to deliver advanced training
and support to the Royal Thai Air Force
and to the Middie East Our market lead
n independent EW operational support
and traiming has been strengthened by
the recent acquisition of Abacus EW
Consultancy Limited {Abacus EW)

Based 1n Wellingore near Lincoln,

Abacus EW provides consuttancy services
and operationally based traiming n
commumcations and radar EW to UK and
overseas customers, pnmanly n the land
and manume environments Abacus EW
and MASS are both market leaders in their
respective fields, and this complementary
fit extends the value we can offer
worldwide customers 1n independent EW
operational support This independence
enables us to provide impartial support,
training and tools, building strategic
partnerships such as with BAE Systems
for the Typhoon aircraft, with Saab for
the Gripen awrcraft, and others in the
naval and land arenas

Business growth has resulted n a need
for larger and better suited office and

laboratory space This has been met by
purchasing and equipping a new secure




site 1n 5t Neots ready for occupation n
late summer 2010 This provides sufficient
space for the coming years, and provides
flexable options for the future

Lockwng forward, we have been
successfully down-selected with our
partner Logica as one of two contenders
for the UK MOD programme to replace 1ts
Defence EW Database and make other
improvements to 1ts Defence EW Centre
This 15 an 1mportant programme for MASS,
and we will continue to give it high
prionty We enter 2010/11 with an order
book above £75m and, despite a degree
of uncertainty over government spending,
continue to see the potential for sigmficant
growth across all three divisions Combined
with our new facilities, recent acquisition
of Abacus EW, and other strong prospects,
the outlock for 2010/11 and beyond 15 good

“We enter 2010/11 with an
order book above £75m, and
continue to see the potential
for significant growth across
all three divisions.”
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Operations Review: SCS

Andrew Themis Chief Executive

$CS has had an exceptionally challenging
year, with the income overstatement and
accounting problems that were uncovered
n December 2009 concealing a significant
operating problem This was caused

by a combination of low-margin and
lass-makang contracts, a tighter market

0 certam areas and a very sigmficant
accretion of cost, both direct and indirect

Led by Stanley Carter in the role

of Intenm Managing Directer, and
starting n January 2010, SCS conducted
a major restructunng exercise, reducing
manpower from a peak of nearly 140

at the beginming of the year to under
100 now This has been achieved through
a rationalisation of the management
structure as well as reductions In
chient-facing staff | am delighted that
we have agreed the appontment of

Bill Bird as the permanent Managing
Director He 15 a highly able indmwidual
with long expenence 1n defence and
consultancy and | look forward to working
with mm when he takes over the role 1n
September 2010 In the meantime | have
taken over from Stanley 1n an intenm
capacity, combining the roles of Group
Chief Executive and Managing Director

SCS has been awarded a further extension to
1ts long-running training support activity at the
UK’s Permanent Joint Headquarters, valued at

over £2m.
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of SC$ There remains sigmficant work to
do 1in improving SCS's business processes
and practices and | am moving ahead
with this with the assistance of the new
management team

With the accounting uncertainties
stripped away, 1t 15 clear that $C5's
operational performance started the
year badly and declined, heading

to a performance only stightly above
breakeven at the half year and
detenorating to a loss at the beginning
of the second half More positively,
towards the end of the year SCS began
once again to generate a trading profit,
even before the full benefit of the
restructurnng was realised

Aganst this difficult background it

15 encouraging that SCS has achieved
considerable success 1n several areas
of 1ts operations Notably the support
engineering and logistic information
systems areas performed ahead of
expectations, driven by the sigmficant
change programmes going on 1n the
relevant areas of the MOD SCS has
been awarded a further extension to
1ts long-running traiming support activity

@ Below
COPYRIGHT The Defence Pricture Library
Picture credit Patnick Allen /DPL




“I am delighted that we have
agreed the appointment of
Bill Bird as the permanent
Managing Director.”

® Left COPYRIGHT
The Defence Picture
Library
Pacture credit Craig
Willams /DPL

® Right COPYRIGHT
The Defence Picture
Library
Prcture credit  Carl
Shulzte /DPL

at the UK’s Permanent Joint Headguarters,
valued at over £2m We have continued
to support the Police National Chemical,
Biological, Radiclogical and Nuclear
Defence Centre, a relationship which we
hape will lead to further opportunities,
ncluding wath international customers

In February SCS moved out of 1ts Henley-
on-Thames offices nto a new and high
quality facility at Theale, adjacent to the
M4, south of Reading This provides a
modern open plan environment and

a number of lugh quahity meeting rooms,
enabling SCS to work more effectively
and presenting a much improved face

to customers |t also has better road and
rail links Following the restructuring
this facility has spare capacity, and so
the Cohort headquarters team waill
relocate there this summer

Looking forward, despite the uncertainty
surrounding UK defence spending,

SCS has good reasen to be optimistic
Although work still needs to be done

to optimise the organisation, we have a
much reduced cost base and we have the
flexability and responsiveness to move
our focus to the services our customers
need most Despite the tighter spending
environments in the UK, SCS has continued
to identify promising opportunities,

not least with export customers
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Operations Review: SEA

Paul Phillips Managing Director SEA

SEA has enjoyed a year of strong revenue
growth to £30 2m, a 12% increase on
2009 The Company has made good
progress in further developing its market
pasition, particularly 1n the defence and
space sectors

The increase 1n revenue, however, was
not matched by a growth n profitability
and the SEA trading profit for 2010 of

£1 6m was markedly down on 2009°s

£3 1m This was the result of suppage

n achieving orders against forecast over
the year (resulting 1n higher costs aganst
revenue) and cost overruns on a few
techmically challenging projects

which have now been provided

for as at 30 April 2010

Qur defence activities continued to
develop strongly i the manne, land,

air and I5TAR domains During the year
SEA secured a major contract from

BAE Systems to supply the External
Communications Systems (ECS) for the
UK’s Astute Class Submarine programme
This was a sigmificant win against strong
domestic and international competition.
The contract 1s progressing well wath our
partners Selex and Thales providing major

SEA achieved record order intake of £39.2m
leading to a record order book of £24.7m at

30 April 2010.
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nputs to schedule We have successfully
completed the preliminary design review
and will be ready for cntical design
review in July 2010 Whilst our current
contract is for the supply of Boat 4

(HMS Audacious} there are reasonable
prospects of further build for future
submannes Export opportumties are
also bewng pursued In the iand domain
SEA has delivered on the Future
Dismounted Close Combat Research
programme with considerable
explotation potential n the field

of commumcations

SEA 15 well advanced 1n 1ts programme
to delver continuous vibration recording
combined with rotor track and balance
equipment for Mertin helicopters

Flight tnals commenced n 2009 and

we anticipate the bulk of equipment
deliveres in 2010

SEA made sigmficant steps 1n Aerospace
Of partrcular note SEA 15 now responsible
for several key roles on the Earthcare
Satellite Mission This joint Eurcpean-
Japanese programme 15 planned to see

a satellite launch 1n 2013 equipped with
four sensor instruments designed to



“SEA made significant steps 1n
Aerospace. Of particular note
SEA1s now responsible for
several key roles on the
Earthcare Satellite Mission.”

moniter global atmasphenc conditions,
changes and trends SEA1s responsible

for the supply of one of these sensors,

the Broadband Radiometer instrument and
1s playing a key role in the development
of the other three sensors

A further significant win in the year was
the Interface Control Uit (ICU) on the
Bepi-Columbo mission to Mercury This s
expected to provide a good platform for
further deliveries of ICU units nto other
space programmes

Our space credentials were enhanced

by achieving the required operational
performance of the 4 Kelvin Cooler Dnve
Electromcs on ESA's Planck Satelbite which
was launched n May 2009

Transpart division has had a tougher year
following the completion of 1ts deliveres
to Transport for London 1n 2009 But it
achieved some sigmificant steps forward
at the end of the year Of particular note
was the roll out and deployment, by local
authorities, of SEA’s ROADflow product
The product 15 intended to ease traffic
congestion and 1mprove road safety
through the more efficient generation

of penalty notices to those who illegally
dnive 1in bus lanes and park n bus stops
and restnicted areas at road crossings
and schools

Towards the year-end SEA formed

a Marine division 1 which we have
combined our entire submarine, surface
ship, unmanned vehicles and sonar
technologies This removed areas of
overlap and has given greater cntical
mass and fecus o our technology
developments and product support for all
of our military and commercial customers

Across all SEA's divisions we have maintained
and developed the strategies of holding a
mix of application, emerging technologies,
concept and feasibibty studies, coupled wath
larger development programmes like ECS

SEA achieved record order intake of

£39 2m leading to a record order book of
£24 7m at 30 April 2010 and coupled with
a more focused business this provides a
basis for improved performance 1n 2010/11
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01 Mick Prest CBE™

Charrman

Nick Prest became Chairman of Cohort on flotation in March 2006 After
graduating from Oxford in 1974 Nick joined the MOD In 1982 Nick moved to
Alvis, the defence contractor, undertaking a variety of roles before becoming
chief executive 1n 1989 and chairman and chief executive 1n 1996 Mick left
Alwis following 1ts acquisition by BAE Systems 1n 2004, by which time the
company had become a leading international business in military land
systems In addition to betng Chairman of Cohort, Nick 1s also chairman

of Aveva Group plc, a FTSE 250 software company, and of Shephard Group,
a privately owned media company specialising in defence and aerospace
Nick 15 a member of the Governing Council of ADS, the UK defence industry
trade association

02 5taniey Carter**

Co-Chairman

Stanley Carter became Co-Chatrman of Cohort 1n 2009 having previously
been its Chief Executive, a post which he had held since Cohort’s formation
1 2006 Prigr to that he was Managing Director of SCS which he founded n
1992 on {eaving the Regular Army, which was acquired by Cohort at the time
of 1ts flotation During hus military service as a Royal Artillery officer he held
a wide range of operational posts and staff officer appointments 1n the MOD,
ncluding the central staff, procurement, government research establishments
and had sigmificant interaction with industry He also represented the UK on
NATO technical committees He has degrees in Technology and Behavioural
Scrence from Loughborough and the Open University respectively, and an
MSc 1n Information Systems from the Royal Military College of Science

03 Andrew Thomis*

Chief Executive

Andrew Thomis graduated from Impenal College, London 1n 1987 He spent
rirre years in the MOD as a fast-stream cvil servant, carrying out roles
ncluding technology research, scientific policy advice and a spell as a private
secretary to the defence procurement menister He left 1n 1996 and, following
a period with Capita plc's management consultancy arm, he jomned Alvis 1n

a role covering strategy, MitA and business development Andrew left Alvis

1n 2005, following the takeover by BAE Systems and worked with Nick Prest
and Stanley Carter on the creation of Cohort ple, acting as Finance Director
during the flotation and subsequentty Corporate Development Director
Following two years as Managing Director of MASS Consultants Limited,

a group member company, he returned to Cohort, as Chief Executive 1n

May 2009

04 S1mon Walther*

Finance Director and Company Secretary

After graduating with a BSc from London, S1mon Walther went on to qualify
as a chartered accountant with Touche Ross in 1992 Simon moved to the
Peminsular and Onental Steam Navigation Company (P&O) 1n 1993 where he
was appointed a chief accountant for P&O European Ferries in 1995 In 1997
he was appointed group financial controller at Alvis He joined Cohort

as Finance Director in May 2006, having considerable industry relevant
experience with Alvis and BAE Systarns

05 Sir Robert Walmsiey KCB**

Independent Non executive Director

Sir Robert Walmsley served 1n the Royal Navy where his final appointment
was as controlier of the Navy and member of the Navy Board as a vice
admiral He was knighted 1n 1995 After retining from the Navy, he was
appainted as chief of defence procurement, occupying that position from
1996 untail 2003 He served on the Britwish Energy Board from 2003 until 2009
He continues on the board of the General Dynamics Corporation and Ultra
Electromic Holdings as well as being a semor adviser at Morgan Stanley
International and chatrman of the Major Projects Association

06 Ashley Lane

Managing Director of MASS

Ashley Lane graduated from Surrey Umiversity with a Masters Degree
{Distinction} n Electrome and Electncal Engineening in 1991 On graduation
he joined Thorn Eml Electronics as a Systems Engineer working on
countermeasures and electronic surveitiance systems He spent four years
in technology development and licensing, building the successful wireless
technology company UbiNetics Ashley has held key technical roles on a
number of electronics, IT and real-time systemn projects He has held
positions as Business Manager, Consultancy Dwision Head, Programme and
Project Manager and, for five years Systems Development and Technical
Director for MASS Ashley was appointed as Managing Director of MASS in
May 2009

07 Paul Phillips

Managing Director of SEA

Paul Phallips graduated in Mathematics from Herriot-Watt University in 1978
Paul wmitially began work on sonar development programmes at Plessey Naval
Systems before joining SEA 1n 1989 During his time with SEA, Paut has held
arange of management and director positions across Defence and Space as
well as undertaking the Techmcal Director role for a period Paul has been

a Director of SEA since 1993, lastly in the role of leading the Company's
defence offenng prior to stepping up to the Managing Director role in

Apnl 2008

* Member of the Cohort ple Board
* Member of Remuneration & Appomntments and Audit Committees
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Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their report and the audited financial statements {pages 32 to 35) of Cohort pic for the year ended
30 Apnl 2010 Cohort plc 15 a company incorporated n and operating from England Its registered address 1s Arlington House,
1025 Arlington Business Park, Theale, Reading RG7 45A

Share capital of the Company and transactions with shareholders
Dunng the year, the Company issued 195,845 shares 11 order to satisfy employee share option plans that were exercised

Principal activities, business review and future developments

The principal activity of the Company 1s that of a holding company The principal activities of the Group are described in the
‘About us’ section (inside front cover) The operational and financial performance of the Group as wetl as 1ts nsks are descnbed
n the Chairman's Statement, Chief Executive’s Review, Finance Director’s Review and Operations Reviews on pages 2 to 17
The Finance Director’s Review includes a review of key performance indicators The resources, future outiook and development
of the Group, including acquisition strategy, 1s reviewed 1n the same statements on pages 2 to 17 The Group’s approach to nsk
15 chscussed below

Specific matters of note
On 11 June 2009 the Group paid the earn out on MASS of £0 3m, which was in full and final settlement

The Group’s previcusly reported result for the year ended 30 Apnil 2009 has been restated, reducing the reported profit before tax
by £1,837,000 as a result of overstated amounts recoverable on contracts at 5CS (see note 10)

On 1 August 2009 the Group's joint venture undertaking, AGS, sold its business, realising a profit for the Group of £0 2m before tax

Results and dividend
The Group’s performance was below expectations following the poor trading at SCS and contract difficulties at SEA

The profit for the year of the Group after dividends paid of £754,000 (2009 £627,000) was £1,537,000 (2009 £3,132,000)
The profit for the year of the Company after dividends paid of £754,000 (2009 £627,000) was £2,455,000 (2009 loss of £75,000)

The trading performance of the Group represents the trading result of the Group’s 100% subsicharies MASS, SCS and SEA less the
corporate costs of the Company

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 1 4 pence (2009 1 2 pence) per 10 pence ordinary share

Research and development
Duning the year ended 30 April 2010 the Group expenditure on research and development, both on behalf of customers and the
Group's own private venture expenditure, was £8 5m (2009 £7 1m)

Approach to nsk
The business nsks of the Group can be summansed as follows

External (or market) sk
The Group’s external nsk 1s in respect of the following

1 Customers

The Group has a number of key customers, mostly in the Government sector These customers are served either directly

e g the UK MOD (£40 3m revenue n 2010 (2009 £43 2m), 52% (2009 56%) of total Group revenue) or Indirectly via other
contractors, n the case of the UK MOD, £16 8m (2009 £15 6m) of Group revenue (22%, 2009 20%) was via other contractors
The Group continues to be reliant on 1ts ultimate pnmary customer, the MOD (73% of Group revenue 1n 2010, 2009 76%) but
15 reducing this reliance by expanding 1ts overseas defence offering as well as other non-defence sectors, inctuding Space and
Transport The Group ensures 1t engages at all levels of the MOD and remains responsive to 1ts primary customer’s needs

11 Suppliers

As 15 typical 1n the Defence and Space sectors, the Group 1s reliant on certain key suppliers for 1ts techmcal and product offenngs
This risk 1s managed through close haison with suppliers, good project management and having contingency plans to go to
altermative suppliers or bring n-house

The Group has no sigmficant rellance on any one indwvidual supplier

m Partners
The Group, especially 1n the Defence sector, often secures business through teaming and partnering with other suppliers and
this 15 often a requirement of securing work with the MOD 1n arder to ensure the end customer recewves the best of everything

The Group takes an active part 1n these arrangements and, through regular (usually monthly) project review meetings and
other correspondence, ensures that the team (including our partners) delivers as a whole to the customer and te the indmvidual
team members

Internal (or financial and operational) nsk

1 Revenue

The Group takes a prudent approach to revenue and credit nsk, and any work dene at risk 1s minmal, authonsed at the appropnate
level and reviewed on a menthly basis The catibre of the Group’s customers and the control processes in respect of revenue capture
and invoicing ensures mimmal bad debts The 2010 bad debt charge was £104,000 (2009 ENil) on Group revenue of £78 1m
{2009 £76 7m) The increase in the charge 1n the year ended 30 Apnl 2010 was primarily due to prudent pravisioning against
some older items
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Directors’ Report continued

Approach to risk (continued)

internal (or financiat and operational) nsk (continued)

1 Revenue {continued)

The Group also uses letters of credit and other methods of payment guarantee, including customer advances, especizlly n respect

of overseas customers, to ensure any export debt nsk 1s minimised Sigmificant debt receivable n foreign currency 1s hedged using

forward exchange contracts which are entered into when contracts are deemed effective ‘

2009

2010 {restated)

Financial assets exposed to credit nsk at 30 Apnl £m £m
Trade recervables 15 4 161
Other receivables 74 63
Cash and bank deposits 66 75

The other recewvables at 30 Apnl 2009 has been reduced by £1 8m as a result of the restatement of amounts recoverable on
contracts at 5CS (see note 10)

Cash and bank deposits are all with the Group's bank, RBS In addition, gross indebtedness to the bank was £3 6m at 30 Apnil 2010
{2009 £3 8m) '

Of the trade recetvables, £4 2m was with the MOD at 30 Apnl 2010 (2009 £8 1m)

1 Treasury

The Group takes a very prudent approach to the management of 1ts financial instruments which are described n note 21
The Group's cash 1s held with at least AA rated nstitutions and on deposits not exceeding three months This ensures a very
low risk to capital and a reasonable balance of iquidity against interest earned on cash deposits

Durng the year, the Group renewed 1ts working capital facility with RBS for £2 5m  This facility 15 available to all of the Group's
entities through an offset arrangement The current facility expires 1n October 2010 when 1t 15 expected to be renewed

The Group did not utilise this working capital facibty dunng the year ended 30 Apnil 2010 having an average cash balance
of £4 4m, cash balances ranging from a low of £0 5m to a mgh of £6 9m

m Currency risk !
The Group manages 1ts exposure to currency nsk by using forward foreign currency exchange contracts The level of forward cover

1s determined contract by contract taking into account the net currency exposure to receipts and purchases Forward contracts are

only put 1n place when customer contracts are deemed effective The Group does not enter speculative forward exchange contacts

The Group’s exposure to credit nisk at 30 Aprit 2010 1n respect of financial dervatives (forward foreign exchange contracts)
was £11 4m (2009 £3 5m) The financial dervatives at 30 Apnl 2010 were all held wath RBS

v Interest rate risk
The Group considers interest rate nsk loan by loan and, where appropnate, the Group enters interest rate swaps to fix 1ts interest
rate exposure

At 30 Apnit 2010, the Group had 1n place one interest rate swap against a mortgage secured on 1ts freehold property 1n Beckington,
fixing the nterest rate at 6 88%

v QOperations
The Group'’s operational nsk 15 pnmanly through 1ts three subsidianes The subsidiary trading or business risks are similar 1n the
case of MASS and SEA

MASS and SEA primary nisks are

1 Bid nsk - the businesses bid on contracts where the scope of work may not be well or fully defined by the customer This 1s
typical in Defence and Space and 15 managed through bid/no bid reviews at the appropnate level using experenced personnel,
mcluding the Cohort Executive and Board, for bids above £3 Om

n Fixed price contracts - these are often of a long-term nature (greater than twelve months) and tymically include debivery of
hargware and software These projects are managed by dedicated project management, monthly review by the subsidiary Board
and regular interaction with the customer and key suppliers Margin 1s recogmsed taking account of nsk and cost to complete

n

=

Due to the nature of their niche techmcal skills requirement, both MASS and SEA have a fixed leve! of core software engineenng
and techmical expertise This cost base 15 carefully momtored at budget time and by rolling quarterly forecasts to identify any
potential nsk of low utibisation and thus under recovery of cost

The nsk 15 mitigated, n the short-term, to a certain extent by the use of a smail number of sub-contractor staff In the long term,
a programme of skills assessment and training 1s in place to ensure continued flexability of the engineenng resource

SCS

The primary cost nsk 15 1n respect of staff utibsation This nsk 15 managed by retaiming a2 mimimal core staff, essential for business
support, development and delivering key skills to customers The majonty of deliverable service s provided by non-core staff
{associates) where cost 1s only ncurred when the associates are on task earming revenue

SCS has a small number of fixed price contracts which are managed by specifically tasked project management and reviewed
on a regular basis for financial performance and nsk to recogmsed margin  The recognised margms should take account of nsks
and costs to completion It was the faslure of this process aleng with the lack of appropnate review which resulted in the
overstatement of revenue and profit for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 This process has now been reinforced in SCS
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Approach to risk (continued)

SCS (continued)

The Group (through all three subsidianes) operates a number of off-site managed service contracts These contracts are long-term
I nature (typically five years at commencement) and are managed through dedicated site project managers The contracts are
fixed price n terms of revenue and cost with oppartunities for additional tasks enhancing volume and return  The Group carefully
manages the partnership with its customer and supplier base n all these cases to ensure the customer receives value for money
and skilled Group staff providing a dedicated, flexible and responsive approach The prnimary nsk to these managed service contracts
1s termination which 1s mitigated by the partnening approach adopted by the Group and our close engagement with the customer
to ensure customer requirements remain paramount at all times, as borne out by the recent renewal of an important MOD
in-service support contract for the next nine years

vl Acquisitions
The Group’s acquisition risk 1s mitigated as far as practicable by the acquisition process being managed at the Cohort Board level,
making use of appropriate external expertise and resources as and when required

Going concern

On the basis of the Group’s current internal financial projections {(which look forward three years), the banking and cash faclives
avaiable to the Group (see the Finance Director’s Review) and the level of order book geing inte the current and future financial
years, the Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue n operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis 1n prepanng the financial statements

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Group and parent company has reported 1ts results for the year ended 30 April 2010 1n accordance with IFRS

Directors
The Group maintains approprate nsurance cover n respect of legal actions against the Directors, as well as against matenal loss
or claims agamst the Group, and reviews the adequacy of the cover regularly

Payment policy
In respect of all of its suppliers, the Group’s policy 15

® to agree the terms of payment when contracting with suppliers,
® to ensure suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment, and
#® to abide by the terms of payment

All suppliers are treated alike in terms of payment with no preference to any one supplier, and the Group does not follow any
particular code of practice or standard 1n 1ts payment policy

At 30 April 2010, the trade creditors of the Group represented 26 days (2009 47 days) of purchases

Employee involvement

The Group orgamses staff communications locally through 1ts subsidiary undertakings The media used for orgamsed communications
ncludes local intranets, in-house magazines, staff bulletins, presentations and copies of press releases In addition, regular staff
meetings are held and notices are published containing information about matters of nterest within the Group and 1ts subsiciaries

Disabled people

The pohicy of the Group 1s to offer the same opportunmity to disabled people as to all others in respect of recruitment and career
advancement, provided their disability does not prevent them from carrying out their required duties Employees who become
disabled will, wherever possible, be retained, rehabilitated and where necessary retrained

Donations
During the year ended 30 April 2010 the Group made chantable donations of £6,347 (2009 £3,961), manly n respect of military
and local chanties The Group made no pelitical donations duning the year (2009 £Nil)

Post balance sheet events (note 30)
On 14 May 2010 the Group acquired the entire share capital of Abacus EW Consultancy Limited for an imtial cash consideration
of £1 Om with a further £1 8m payable over the next three years If the business achieves agreed performance targets

Auditor

A resolution to appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) follawing the change from
Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP in the year The Directors who were 1n office on the date of approval of these financial statements have
confirmed, as far as they are aware, that there 15 no relevant audit information of which the auditor 1s unaware Each of the
Directors have confirmed that they have taken all the steps they ought to have taken as Directors 1n order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 1t has been communicated to the auditor

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2010 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Simon Walther
Company Secretary
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Corporate Governance Report

Introduction

As Cohort plc 1s listed on AIM 1t 15 neither required to comply with the Combined Code 2006 (the Code) nor 1ssue a statement of
compliance with it Nevertheless, the Board fully supports the pnnciples set out in the Code and seeks to comply wherever this
Is appropriate, having regard to the size of the Company and the resources available to1t Details are provided below of how the
Company applies the Code

The Board

The Board of Directors comprises the Chairman, two Executive Directors and two Non-executive Directors, Stanley Carter
(Ca-Chairman) and Sir Robert Walmsley The Chairman and the Co-Chairman had consultancy agreements with the Company
(see the Remuneration & Appointments Comnuttee Report on pages 26 to 28) to provide services, pnimanily 1n respect of strategic
business development and acquisition activity Nick Prest and Stanley Carter are not considered independent

The Board has determined 5ir Robert Walmsley to be independent and he 1s designated the Semor Independent Director

The Board meets mast months and receives a monthly Board pack compnsing indvidual reports from each of the Executive Directors
and the subsidiary Managing Directors together wath any other matenal deemed necessary for the Board to discharge its duties itis
the Board's responsibility to formulate, review and approve the Group's strategy, budgets, major tems of expenditure and acquisitions

All Directors retire by rotation and are subject to election by shareholders at intervals of once every three years

Board committees
The Board has established two committees Audit, and Remuneration & Appointments, each having written terms
of delegated responsibilities

Audit committee

The Audit committee comprises the Campany Chairman and the Non-executive Directors and 1s scheduled to meet at least twice
a year It s the Audit committee’s role to provide formal and transparent arrangements for considenng how to apply the financial
reporting and internal control requirements of the Code, whilst maintaiming an appropnate relationship wath the independent
auditor of the Group In order to comply with the requirement of the Code that at least one merber has relevant financial
expenence, the Chairman of the Board sits on the Audit committee

The independent auditor Liaises with the Audit committee regarding work to be undertaken and complies with the Ethical

Standards for Auditors 1ssued by the Auditing Practice Board Each year, prior to commencing its audit work, the independent
auditor confirms 1n wrting the nature of any non-audit work on behalf of the Group and the safeguards 1n place to ensure 1ts
dependence and objectivity, any in-year proposals for non-audit work are subject to pnor approval by the Audit committee

The Company has instituted format arrangements to faciitate “whistle-blowing” by employees through a contract wath a third
party service provider If any catl 1s made to this third party, either the Chief Executive or the Chaiman of the Audit committee
15 notified promptly of the fact and the content of the call, so that approprate action can be taken

Remuneration & Appointments committee

The Remuneration & Appointments committee comprises the Company Chairman and the Non-executive Directors and 1s scheduled
to meet at least once a year [t1s the Remuneration & Appointments committee’s role to establish a formal and transparent policy
on Executive remuneration and to set remuneration packages for individual Directors

Sir Robert Walmsley 15 Chairman of both the Audit and Remuneration & Appointments committees

The attendance of the Directors at Board and committee meetings for the year ended 30 April 2010 was as follows

Remuneration &

Board Audit Appointments

N Prest {Chairman) 15 4 4
S Carter {Co Chawrman) 15 4 4
Sir Robert Walmsley (Non-executive Director) 15 4 4
AThoms (Chief Executive) 15 - -
S Walther {Finance Director and Company Secretary) 15 - -

The Board has not established a Nominations commttee This 1s not considered necessary due to the small size of the Cohort Board
The role of the Nominations committee 15 undertaken by the Remuneration & Appointments committee and the Chief Executive

24 Cohort ple Annual Report and Accounts 2010




As a result of the overstatement of revenue and profit at 5CS for the year ended 30 Apni 2009, as announced on 3 December 2009
and further clanfied on 18 March 2010, the Board {through the Chairman of the Audit Committee) undertook a review of the
oversight and control of the Group and 1ts subsidianes This report was reviewed by an independent orgamsation Independent
Audit Limited for 1ts appropnateness and thoroughness, and was found to be satisfactory The resulting report made a number of
recommendations, all of which have been agreed by the Board and either have been or are n the process of being nplemented

The key recommendations were as follows
® closer oversight of subsidianes by the Cohort Executives, 1ncluding regular attendance at subsidiary management meetings, and
® review and implementation of business processes at SCS

The implementation of all of the key recommendations 15 ongoing

Management of the Group and its subsidiary undertakings
The management of the Group and subsidiary undertakings 1s as follows

Group management
® {ohort plc Board meeting at least eight times per year

& Group Executive committee meeting at least four times per year, compnising Cehort ple Executive Directors and subsichary
Managing Directors

Subsichary management
® Monthly executive management meetings involving the senior management of each subsidiary Cohort Executive Directors attend
substdiary executive management meetings on a regular basis

Shareholder relations

The Company meets with 1ts institutional shareholders and analysts as approprate and will use the AGM to encourage
communication with private shareholders In addition, the Company uses the Annual Report and Accounts, Interim Report
and website (www cohortplc com) to provide further information to shareholders

Internal control and risk management

The Board 15 responsible for the system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risks and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst material misstatement
or loss Each year, on behalf of the Board, the Audit committee will review the effectiveness of these systems This 15 achieved
primanly by considering the risks potentially affecting the Group and from discussions with the external auditor

The Group does not currently have an internal audit function due to the smalt size of the adrmmistrative function and the mgh
level of Director review and authonsation of transactions

A comprehensive budgeting process 15 completed once a year, reviewed and approved by the Board In addition the Group
conducts quarterly re-forecasts The Group’s results, as compared agamnst budget and the latest quarterly forecast, are reported
to the Board on a monthly basis and discussed in detail at each meeting of the Board
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Remuneration & Appointments Committee Report

Introduction
Companes quoted on AlM are not required to provide a formal remuneration report However, 1n line wath current best practice,
this report provides mformation to enable a greater level of understanding as to how Directors’ remuneration 1s determined

The Remuneration & Appointments committee of the Board 1s responsible for considenng Directors’ remuneration packages
and makes its recommendations to the Board

Remuneration policy
Remuneration packages are designed to be competitive and to reward above average performance

Executive Directors receive salary, medical caver, pension contrnbution, annual bonuses and share options

Service contracts of the Executive Directars who served in the year

Andrew Thormis and Simon Walther have service agreements with the Company which can be cancelled by either party giving
six months’ notice at any time or twelve months’ notice 1n the event of a change of control arising as a result of any person
or persons acquining more than 50% of the voting nghts at a general meeting of the Company

Pensions
The Group makes contnbutions to a stakeholder pension scheme (a defined contnbution scheme) at a rate of 10% of the Executive
Director’s contnbuticn

Director’s interest in the equity of Cohort plc
The Directors in office duning the year under review and their interests in the equity of the Campany were

At

30 ApriL

2009

At ordate of

30 April appointment
2010 if later
number of  number of
10p ordinary 10p ordinary

shares shares
S Carter 10,665,718 10,645,718
N Prest 2,084,580 2,064,580
AThomis 35,230 32,230
Sir Robert Walmsley 25,035 20,035
S Walther 25,601 19,000

Performance incentives
The Group operates a cash bonus scheme and grants share options

No bonus was payable to the Executive Directors for the year ended 30 Apnil 2010 (2009 £55,320)

The bonuses paid to the Executive Directors for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 have been agreed by these Directors to be repaid in full
Stanley Carter has repaid is in full (£22,875 as at 30 Apnil 2010} Simon Walther has repaid £1,563 with £17,187 outstanding at
30 Apnl 2010 and will repay 1n full by 30 April 2011 No interest 15 accruing on this outstanding balance

For the year ending 30 Apnil 2011, the bonus payable te the Executive Directors of Cohort plc 1n respect of that year will be based
upon perfermance compared to budget and the achievement of agreed personal objectives
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Performance incentives (continued)

Ordinary shares under option granted dunng the year ended 30 April 2010 and outstanding at 30 Apnil 2010 were as follows

At 1 May

2009 Date from
or date of Lapsed/ At 30 April which option Exerqse
appointment Granted Exetcised forfeited 2010 Date of can be penod
Number Number Numnber Mumber Numbser grant exercised Years
A Thomis
Cohort ptc 2006 share option scheme under the
Enterprise Management Incentive (EM!) scheme
- Qption price of £1 23 per share 40,650 - - - 40,650 B Mar 2006 9 Mar 2009 7
- Opton price of £1 66 per share 9,036 - - - 9,036 21 Aug 2007 22 Aug 2010 7
- Option price of £1 B9 per share 10,582 - - - 10,582 11 Jul 2008 12 Jul 2011 7
Cohort ptc 2006 share option scheme (unapproved)
- Option price of £1 66 per share 14,056 - - - 14,056 21 Aug 2007 22 Aug 2010 7
- Option price of £L1 89 per share 15,873 - - - 15,873 11 Jul 200812 July 2011 7
- Option prnice of £1 715 per share - 39,650 - - 39,650 5Aug 2009 6 Aug 2012 7
Save as you earn (SAYE) scheme
- Option pnice of £1 23 per share 912 - {912) - — 5May 2006 1 June 2009
- Option price of £1 33 per share 866 — - - 866 12 Feb 2008 1 April 2009
- Option price of £1 38 per share - 1,630 - - 2,630 18 Aug 2009 1 Sept 2012
91,975 42,280 (912) — 133,343
5 Walther
Cohort pic 2006 share option scheme under the
Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) scheme
- Option price of £1 41 per share 42,554 - - - 42,554 10}kl 2006 10 Jul 2009 7
- Option price of £1 66 per share 21,084 — - - 21,084 21 Aug 2007 22 Aug 2010 7
- Option price of £1 89 per share 13,227 - - - 13,227 1102008 12 b 2011 7
Cohert plc 2006 share option scheme (unapproved)
- Optien price of £1 89 per share 13,228 - - - 13,228 11Jul 2008 12 Jul 2011 7
- Option price of €1 715 per share - 32,653 - - 32,653 5Aug 2009 6 Aug 2012 7
Save as you earn {SAYE) scheme
- Option pnce of £1 23 per share 7,601 — {7,601) — — SMay 2006 1 Jun 2009
- Option price of L1 38 per share - 6,576 - - 6,576 18 Aug 2009 1 Sept 2012
97,694 39,229 {7,601) - 129,322
5 Carter
Cohort plc 2006 share option scheme under the
Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) scheme
- Opuion price of £1 B9 per share 40,278 - - {40,278} — 11Jul 2008 12 Jui 2011 ?
Save as you earn (SAYE) Scheme
- Option price of £1 33 per share 7,218 - - (7,218) ~ 11Feb 2008 1 Oct 2011
47,496 - - (47,496} -
There are no performance conditions applying to any of the share option schemes above The price paid for all share options
1n the abave schemes was Nil pence
The gain on the exercise of share options 1n the year was £4,670
The mid-market price of Cohort plc 10 pence ordinary shares at 30 Apnl 2010 was 106 5 pence (2009 175 5 pence), the lowest
and highest market prices in the year were 79 5 pence and 183 5 pence respectively
The maximum bonus payable for the year ended 30 Apnl 2011 as a percentage of salary 15 as follows
Group Personal
performance objectives Total
% X %
AThormis 18 75 6125 25
$ Walther 18 75 625 25

No bonuses are payable or share options awardable to the Non-executive Directors

Bonus schemes for semor management of the subsichary companies have been established for the year ending 30 Apnl 2011, with a
similar framework to that of the Cchort plc Executive Directors, with vanng levels of percentage of salary, none exceeding 25%
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Remuneration & Appointments Committee Report continued

Chairman and Non-executive Directors

Both Nick Prest and Sir Robert Walmsley were appointed i February 2006 These appeintments can be terminated upon three
months’ notice being given by either party They received an annual fee of £30,000 each In addition, Mick Prest provided
consultancy services to the Group in accordance with an agreement entered into on 27 February 2006

Stanley Carter was appointed Non-executive Co-Chairman of Cohort plc on 25 May 2009 As from that date, he received £30,000
per annum as a Non-executive Director of Cohort plc In addition, Stanley Carter provided consultancy services to the Group in
accordance with an agreement entered into on 25 May 2009

From 9 December 2009 to 31 May 2010, Stanley Carter was the acting Managing Director of SCS Whilst 1n this role, Stanley Carter
was paid a remuneration of £120,000 per annum and received no fees 1n respect of his Nen-executwve role He continued to
recewe fees in respect of his consultancy services whilst acting as Managing Director of 5CS

As from 1 May 2010, the annual fees payable to the Chairman and Non-executive Directors are as follows
Chairman - £60,000
Co-Chairman - £45,000
Non-executive Director - £30,000

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors have agreed for the year ended 30 Apnl 2011 to reduce ther fees by 10% to £54,000
(Chairman}, £40,500 (Co-Chairman) and £27,000 (Non-executive) respectively

In addition, the consultancy agreements with Mick Prest and Stanley Carter ceased with effect from 30 Apnl 2010

Directors’ remuneration
Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out betow

Consultancy Benefits Pension
Salary fees Bonus inkind Emoluments contributions Total Total
20 2010 2010 2010 2010 1010 2010 2009
£ £ £ 4 £ 4 £ £
Executwve Directors

A Thormis 159,034 - - 12,672 171,706 1,708 173,414 -
S Walther 140,000 - - 643 140,643 1,415 142,058 146,257
| Dale-Staples (resigned 24 June 2009) - - - - - - - 269,102

Non-executrve Directors
N Prest 30,000 30,000 - - 60,000 - 60,000 50,000
5 Carter 67,887 28,075 - - 95,962 - 95,962 175,536
Sir Robert Walmsley 30,000 - - - 30,000 - 30,000 10,000
Total 426,921 58,075 - 13,315 498,311 3,123 501,434 680,895

On 5 May 2009, Andy Thomis was appointed to the Board of Cohort plc and from 25 May 2009 became the Chief Executive

From 1 June 2010, Andy Thormus has taken on the responsibility of SCS Managing Director n addition to s Cohort Chief Executive
rote until the recently appointed full time Managing Director, Bill Bird, commences on 6 September 2010

The 2009 emoluments reported above for Stanley Carter and Simon Walther include £22,875 and £18,750 n respect of bonus
recewved for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 which have been or are being repaid n futl

Salanes for Andy Thomms and Stmon Walther reman unchanged at £170,000 and £140,000 per annum respectively for the
year ended 30 Apnl 2011
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
In respect of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law
and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements on the same basis

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affars of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that pened In preparing each of the
Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
® make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
@ state whether they have been prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adepted by the EU, and

# prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 15 Inappropnate to presume that the Group and the parent
company witl continue n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable
them to ensure that 1ts financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They have general responsibility for talkang such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other rregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a directors’ report and directors’
remuneration report that comply wath that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financral information included on the
Company’s website Legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation n gther junsdictions
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Cohort plc

We have audited the financial statements of Cohort plc for the year ended 30 Apni! 2010 set out on pages 32 to 60 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation 1s applicable law and Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adepted by the EU and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied n accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we rmight state to the Company’s members those matters we are reguired to state
to them 1n an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent perrmitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report,

or for the opimaons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 29, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility is to audit the
financial statements 1 accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKNP

Opinmion on financial statements
In our opinion

® the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at
30 Apnil 2010 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

@ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

® the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU
and as apphied In accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006, and

® the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In qur opinion the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
I our opnion

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not wvisited by us,

® the parent company financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns,
® certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

& we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Matt Lewis {Senfor Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc
Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants
Arlington Business Park

Theale RG7 45D

25 June 2010

Annual Report and Accounts 2010 Cohert pic 31

asueusanon aye10d10) 1R3), Y} §0 MIIADY

SjUBLIAYES JepPURY Y



Consolidated Income Statement
Forthe year ended 30 April 2010

2009
2010 restated
Notes E£'000 £ 000
Revenue 1 78,129 76,734
Cost of sales (56,666) (54,001)
Gross profit 21,463 22,732
Admimstrative expenses (including amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional 1ems) (18,573) (17,684)
Operating profit 1 2,890 5,049
Compnsing
Adjusted operating profit 1 4,109 6,263
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 (595) (540)
Exceptional items 3 (624) (674)
2,890 5,049
Share of result of Joint ventures 13 - (224)
Finance income 5 38 95
Finance costs 6 (1800 {303)
Profit before tax 2,748 4,617
Income tax expense 7 (457) (858)
Profit for the year attrnbutable to the equity shareholders of the parent 4 2,291 3,759
Earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic 9 563 928
Dluted 9 562 9 2%
All profit for the year 1s denved from continuing operations
The 1ncome statement for the year ended 30 April 2009 has been restated for the revenue and profit before tax overstatement
at 5CS of £1,837,000 (see note 10) and the associated tax credit of £514,000
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ‘
For the year ended 30 Apnil 2010
2009
2010 restated
£'000 € 000
Profit for the year attnbutable to the equity shareholders of the parent 2,291 3,759
Cash flow hedges - income/(losses) taken to equity (net of tax charge of £23,000, 2009 tax credit of £19,000) 60 (49)
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to the equity shareholders of the parent 2,351 3,710

32 (ohort ple Annual Report and Accounts 2010




Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position

As at 30 April 2010
Group Company
2009
{restated
2010 - note 10) 2008 2010 2009 2008
Notes €000 £:000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwll 11 31,043 31,043 31,043 - — -
Other intangible assets 11 632 1,227 1,987 - - -
Property, plant and equipment 12 7,930 4,727 4,866 17 22 —
Investment n subsidianes 13 - - — 42,203 42,203 42,412
Deferred tax asset 20 1,015 266 49 5 - -
40,620 37,263 37,945 42,225 42,225 42,422
Current assets
Inventones 14 440 359 146 - - —
Trade and other recewables 15 22,837 22,438 20,879 319 2,067 2,051
Denvative financial instruments 21 15 178 131 - - —
Cash and cash eguivalents 6,656 7,511 6,081 - 6,200 -
29,948 30,486 27,237 319 8,267 2,051
Total assets 70,568 67,749 65,182 42,544 50,492 44,473
Liabihities
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 (15,117) (16,164) (13,133) (341) {619} (256)
Current tax liabhties (1,804) {993) (619) - - -
Other loans 17 - (32) (41) - - -
Denvative financial instruments 21 (53) (68) - - - -
Bank borrowings 18 (3,171) 3,167y  {3,123) (6,091} (16,199) (5,740)
Provisions 19 (2,411) (1,528) {5,783) - (280) (5,005)
{22,556) (21,952) (22,699) (6,432) (17,098) (11,001)
Non-current habilities
Other loans 17 - - {32} - - —
Bank borrowings 18 {444) (615) (792} - - -
Deferred tax Labibity 20 (1,053) (920) (649} (4] — -
Provisions 19 (155) - (167} - - {167)
(1,652) (1,535)  (1,640) N - (167)
Totat habilittes (24,208) (23,487) (24,339) (6,433) (17,098) (11,168)
Net assets 46,360 44,262 40,843 36,111 33,394 33,305
Equity
Share capital 22 4,079 4,059 4,046 4,079 4,059 4,046
Share premium account 23 29,519 29,297 29,158 29,519 29,297 29,158
Hedge reserve 23 1 (49) - - - -
Share option reserve 23 379 266 200 8 17 ry|
Retained earmings 3 12,372 10,689 7,439 2,485 21 80
Total equity attrbutable to the equity shareholders of the parent 46,360 44,262 40,843 36,111 33,394 33,305

The financial statements on pages 32 to 35 were approved hy the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 25 June 2010 and

Y=

are signed on 1ts behalf by

Simon Walther \
Finance Director

Andrew Thomis
Chief Executive

Registered company number of Cohort plc 05684823
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Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 April 2010

Group Company
2010 1009 2010 2009
Notes £*000 L"000 £7000 L 000
At 1 May as previously stated 45,585 40,843 33,394 33,305
Prior year adjustment at SCS 10 {1,323) - - -
At 1 May (restated) 44,262 40,843 33,394 33,305
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to the equity
shareholders of the parent as previously reported 2,351 5,033 3,209 552
Prior year adjustment at SCS (net of tax} 10 - (1,323) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to the equity
shareholders of the parent 2,351 3,710 3,209 552
Equity dividends paid 8 (754) (627) (754) {627)
Total recognised income and expense 1,597 3,083 2,455 (75)
Exercise of share options 242 152 242 152
Share-based payments 27 259 184 20 12
At 30 Apnil 46,360 44,262 36,111 33,394

See note 23 for the nature and purpose of the constituent elements of the Group and Company equity balances
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements

For the year ended 30 April 2010

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

Note £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000

Net cash generated from operating activities 24 3,961 7,271 4,685 834

Cash flow from nvesting activities
Interest recewved 38 95 16 78
Proceeds on disposals of property, ptant and equipment 35 ] - -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,795) {432) (4)] 23)
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired {(280) (4,673) (280) (4,673}
Net cash used in investing actvities (4,002) (5,004) (265) (4,618)
Cash flow from financing activities

Dmadends pad (754) {627) (754) (627)
Repayment of borrowings (199) {174) - —
Proceeds on 1ssue of shares 242 152 242 152
Net cash (used n)/generated from financing activities (711) {649) (512) {475}
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (752) 1,618 3,908 (4,259}
At At

1 May Exchange 30 April

2009 Cash flow losses 2010

Group funds reconcitiation £'000 £ poo £ 000 £'000
Cash and bank 1,311 5,448 (103) 6,656
Short-term deposits 6,200 (6,200) - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 7,511 {752) {103) 6,656
Other loans (32) 32 - -
Bank loan (3,782) 167 - {3,615)
Totat debt (3,814) 199 - {3,615)
Net funds 3,697 {553) {103) 3,041

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an onginal matunty of three

months or less The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair value
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 Apnil 2010

1 Segmental analysis
For management and reporting purposes, the Group currently operates through its three subsidianes, MASS, SCS and SEA
These subsidianes are the basis on which the Company reports its pnmary segment information

The prnincipal activities of the subsichanes are descnbed on the inside front cover ‘About us’ and m the Operations Reviews
{pages 12 to 17)

Segment information about these subsidianes 1s presented below

MASS SC§ SEA  Eliminations Group
2010 £'000 £1000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Revenue
External revenue 21,484 26,398 30,247 - 78,119
Inter-segment revenue - 28 - (28) -
21,484 26,428 30,247 (28) 78,129
Net profit 3,549 90 1,560 - 5,199
Unallocated corporate expenses {1,050)
Adjusted operating profit 3,549 90 1,560 - 4,109
Amortisation of other intangible assets (305) - (290) (595)
Exceptional items (223) (310) (291) (624)
Qperating profit/(loss) 3,021 (220) 979 - 2,8%0
Finance cost (net of income) - 14 (35) (142)
Profit/ (loss) before tax 3,021 (206) 944 - 2,748
Income tax expense {457)
Profit after tax 2,2

All are UK operations and ati are continuing The 5EA adjusted operating profit of £1,560,000 (2009 £3,124,000) 1s after charging
a loss m respect of marking forward exchange contracts to market of £231,000 (2009 credit of £47,000)

Inter-segment sales are charged at arm’s length rates

Unallocated corporate expenses are the costs of the Cohort head office including the remuneration of the Cohort plc Board

MASS S¢S SEA Central Group
Other information £ 000 £ 000 £°000 £'000 £ 000
Capital additions 2,987 n 475 1 3,795
Depreciation 57 105 189 6 557
Balance sheet Eiminations
Assets
Segment assets 7,872 5,470 19,208 {262) 32,288
Unallocated corporate assets 38,280
Consolidated total assets 70,568
Liabilities
Segment Liabilities {5,709} {4,763) (9,484) 2,142 (17,814)
Unallocated corporate Liabilities (6,394)
Consclidated totat Liabitities (24,208)

Unallocated corporate assets primarily comprise goadwill, other intangible assets and cash

Unallocated corporate hiabilities pnmanly comprise leans and deferred tax habilities
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1. Segmental analysis (continued)

MASS SCS SEA  Elbrmnations Group
2009 (restated) £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Revenue
External revenue 20,622 29,208 26,904 — 76,734
Inter-segment revenue 5 114 = (119) =
20,627 19,322 26,904 (119) 76,734
Net profit 2,832 1,506 3,124 - 7,461
Unallocated corporate expenses (1,199)
Adjusted operating profit 2,832 1,506 3,124 - 6,263
Amortisation of other 1ntangible assets (250) — {290) (540)
Exceptional items - - - (674)
Operating profit 2,582 1,506 2,834 - 5,049
Share of result of joint ventures (224)
Finance cost (net of income) - 16 {57) (208)
Profit before tax 2,582 1,522 1,777 - 4,617
Income tax expense (858)
Profit after tax 3,759

The segmental analysis for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 has been restated 1n respect of a prior year adjustment at 5CS
The external revenue has been reduced by £1,837,000 from £31,045,000 to £29,208,000 and a corresponding reduction to SCS’s
net profit from £3,343,000 previously reported to £1,506,000 The impact of this prier year adjustment on SCS's adjusted
operating profit and the remainder of the income statement is explained 1n note 10

All are UK operations and all are continuing
Inter-segment sales are charged at arm’s length rates

Unallocated corporate expenses are the costs of the Cohort head office including the remuneration of the Cohort plc Board

MASS SC5 SEA Central Group
Other information £ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 L£'000
Capital additions 22 52 335 23 432
Depreciation 64 133 365 1 563
Balance sheet Elimnations
Assets
Segment assets 4,480 B.ON7 15,930 {262) 28,165
Unallocated corporate assets 39,584
Consolidated totat assets 67,749
Liabilities
Segment habilities (5,282) (6,500) (8,910) 2,142 (18,550}
Unallocated corporate liabilities {4,937)
Consolidated total habbities (23,487)

Unallocated corporate assets pnmanily compnse goodwill, other ntangible assets and cash
Unallocated corporate babilities pnmanly compnse loans and deferred tax labibties

The segmental analysis on the assets and liabihities has been restated n respect of prior year adjustment (hote 10} at SCS
The segment assets in respect of SCS have been reduced by £1,837,000 from £9,854,000 to £8,017,000 following the wnte
off of work 1n progress and a reduction n the SCS5 tax liability by £514,000, reducing SCS segment hablities from £7,014,000
to £6,500,000

Geographical segments
The Group’s subsidianes are al! located n the UK The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical
location of the customer

2009

2010 restated

£000 £ 000

UK 64,033 67,294
Other EC countres 8,236 4,348
Asia Pacific 5,692 4,881
USA 1638 M

78,129 76,734

All the Group's assets, tangible and ntangible, are located in the UK

The UK revenue previously reported for the year ended 30 Apnil 2009 has been restated by £1,837,000, reducing the previously
reported revenue of £69,131,000 to £67,294,000 1n respect of the prior year adjustment at 5CS {(see note 10)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2010

1. Segmental analysis (continued)
Market segments
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue by market sector

2009
2010 restated
£'000 £'000
Defence 64,624 64,898
Space 8,188 4,219
Transport 3,365 4,558
Other commercial 1,952 3,059
78,129 76,734
The defence revenue previously reported for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 has been restated by £1,837,000, reducing the
previously reported revenue of £66,735,000 to £64,898,000 1n respect of the prior year adjustment at 5CS (see note 10}
2. Employee benefit expense (including Directors)
2010 2009
£'o00 £'000
Wages and salanes 28,941 28,901
Social security costs 3,248 3,21
Defined contribution pension plan costs 1,585 1,326
Share-based payments 259 184
34,033 33,682
Average number of employees (including Directors)
2010 2009
Number Number
Other operational 485 487
Managed services 56 49
Total operational 541 536
Administration and support 120 109
661 645
The above disclosures include Directors Directors' emoluments and share option detasls are disclosed separately n the
Remuneration & Appointments Committee Report on pages 26 to 28
3. Exceptional items
The net exceptional charge comprises
2010 2009
£000 £ 000
Restructuring at 5C5 310 -
Restructuring at SEA 291 -
Relocation of MASS's operations 148 -
Cost of acquisition of Abacus EW 75 -
Profit on sale of AGS (200) -
Charge 1n respect of withdrawing from the Group's joint venture interest in AGS - 674
624 674
All exceptional items are 1n respect of continuing operations
The tax credht in respect of exceptional items 15 £210,000 (2009 £Mil) and 1s in respect of the continuing items
4 Profit for the year
The profit for the year has been arnved at after charging
2010 2005
Notes £°000 £ 000
Net foreign exchange losses 162 57
Research and development costs 8,546 7,078
Depreciation 12 557 563
Amortisation of other intangible assets 1 595 540
Cost of iInventones recognised as expenses 18,709 16,693
Employee benefit expenses (excluding share-based payments) 2 33,774 33,498
Share-based payments 27 259 184

All of the above charges are 1n respect of continuing operations
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4 Profit for the year (continued)
Auditors' remuneration

The analysis of the auditors’, KPMG Audit Plc (2009 Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP), remuneration 15 as follows

2010 2009
£ 000 £ 000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Cornpany’s and consolidated accounts 10 17
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s subsidianies 60 &0
Totat audit fees 70 77
Tax services - 14
Other seraces pursuant to legislation - 6
Corporate finance services 9 -
Total non-audit fees 9 20
Total fees paid to the auditor and 1ts associates 79 97
Charged to profit for the year 79 97
79 97
The corporate finance services for the year ended 30 April 2010 were 1n respect of the acquisition of Abacus EW
Fees payable to KPMG Audrt Plc and Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP and therr associates for non-audit services to the Company are
not required to be disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated
basis only
5. Finance income
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Interest on bank deposits 16 83
Other interest receivable 22 12
38 95
All finance income 15 1n respect. of continuing operations
6. Finance costs
2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Interest on loans wholly repayable 1n more than five years 10 28
Bank and short-term interest 170 275
180 303
All finance costs are n respect of continuing operations
7. Income tax expense
1009
010 restated
£'000 €000
Current tax n respect of this year 961 785
Current tax n respect of prior perfods 135 -
Deferred tax {see note 20) {639) 73
457 858

The corporation tax 1s calculated at 28% (2009 28%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year, as disclosed below

The current tax 1n respect of the year ended 30 April 2010 1ncludes £210,000 credit (2009 EMNil) 1n respect of exceptional items

The current tax for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 has been reduced from £1,299,000 previously reparted to £785,000 by £514,000
The £514,000 adjustment 15 1n respect of the imputed tax at 28% on the prior year adjustment of £1,837,000 at 5CS (see note 10)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2010

7 Income tax expense (continued)
The current tax charge for the year 1s reconciled to the profit before tax per the income statement as follows
2009

2010 2010 {restated) 2009
Group £000 % £ 000 %
Profit before tax 2,748 4,617
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2009 23%) 76% 280 1,293 280
Tax effect of expenses not allowable for tax purposes 102 45
Tax effect of depreciation in excess of capital allowances 13 26
Tax effect of research and development credits {508) (1,168)
Tax effect of brought forward losses on current tax (40) -
Tax effect of amortisation of other intangible assets 167 151
Tax effect of share-based payments 73 52
Tax effect of share options exercised (26) (19
Tax effect of ather short term timing differences 446 153
Tax effect of disallowed share of jont venture undertakings - 43
Tax effect of disallowed exceptional items (35} 189
Tax effect of prnor pencds 135 —
Income tax expense and effective tax rate for the year 1,096 199 785 170
The tax charge 1s all in respect of continuing operations
8. Dividends
2010 2008
£7000 £°000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders 1n the period
Final dwvidend in respect of the year ended 30 April 2009 at 1 20p per ordinary share (2008 1 00p per ordinary share) 489 405
Intenm dividend 1n respect of the year ended 30 April 2010 at 0 65p per ordinary share (2009 0 55p per ordinary share) 265 222
754 627
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 Apnil 2010 at 1 40p per ordinary share (2009 1 20p per ordinary share) 571 487

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on 2 September 2010 and has not been
included as a Liability n these financial statements

If approved, this dividend wall be patd on 8 September 2010 to shareholders on the register as at 6 August 2010

9. Earnings per share
The earnings per share are calculated as follows

2010 2005
Weightad Weighted
average average Earnings
number Earnings number Eamings per share
of shares Earnings per share of shares {restated) (restated)
Number £'000 Pence Humber L 000 Pence
Basic earmings (net profit attnbutable to equity
holders of Cohort plc) 40,727,969 2,291 5 63 40,491,561 3,759 9 28
Share options 55,361 — - 310,247 - -
Diluted earmings 40,783,330 1,291 5 62 40,801,808 3,759 9N

The earmings for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 have been reduced by £1,323,000, the pror year adjustment of £1,837,000 less tax
of £514,000 The earmings per share have been correspondingly adjusted, the basic earnings per share being reduced from 12 55p
per share to 9 28p per share (see note 10)

The basic earnings per share are calculated by divichng the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company (Cohert plc)
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year The diluted earmings per share are calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company by the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue dunng
the year as adjusted for the effects of potentially dilutive share options
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9. Earnings per share (continued)
In addition, the adjusted earnings per share of the Group are calculated in a similar manner to the basic earnings per share with
the adjustments to the basic earnings as shown below

IHe 2009

Weighted Weighted
average average Eatnings
number Eamings number Earnings per share
of shares Earnings per share of shares (restated) {restated)
Notes. Nuriber £’'000 Pence Number £ 000 Pence
Basic earnings 40,727,969 2,291 5 63 40,491,561 3,759 913
Exceptional items {net of income tax of £210,000) 3 - 414 - - 674 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets " - 595 - - 540 -
Share of result of joint ventures (net of income tax) - - - - 224 -
Adjusted earmngs 40,727,969 3,300 8 10 40,491,561 5,197 12 33
Share options 55,361 - - 310,247 - -
Diluted adjusted earnings 40,783,330 3,300 8 09 40,801,808 5,197 12 74

The adjusted earmings, as for the basic earnings above (see note 10) have been reduced by £1,323,000 from £6,520,000 to
£5,197,000 and the adjusted earmings per share have been correspondingly reduced from 16 10 pence per share to 12 83 pence
per share The adjusted earmings are In respect of continuing operations

The adjustment for the exceptional items {net of income tax) i1s analysed n note 3
10, Prior year restatement
As originally announced on 3 December 2009 and clanfied on 18 March 2010, the Group had previously overstated 1ts revenue

and prefit before tax 1n 1ts subsidiary SCS by £1,837,000 The overstatement was identified as an overstatement of amounts
recoverable on contracts The reasons for the overstatement are discussed in the Finance Director’s Review (pages 6 to 11)

The previously reported results for the year ended 30 Apnt 2009 have been restated as follows
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 Apnil 2009

As previcusly
reported  Restatement As restated
£ 000 £'000 £1600
Revenue 78,571 (1,837) 76,734
Cost of sales (54,001) — (54,001)
Gross profit 24,570 (1,837) 22,733
Administrative expenses {including amortisation of other intangible assets and exceptionat 1tems) (17,684) - (17,684)
Operating profit 6,886 (1,837) 5,049
Comprising
Adjusted operating profit 8,100 (1,837) 6,263
Amortisation of other intangible assets (540} - (540
Exceptional items (674) - (674
Operating profit 6,886 {1,837) 5,049
Share of result of joint ventures {224) - (224)
Finance income 95 - 95
Finance costs {303) — (303)
Profit before tax 6,454 (1,837) 4,617
tncome tax expense {1,372) 514 (858)
Profit for the year attnbutable to the equity shareholders of the parent 5,082 {1,323) 3,759
Earnings per share Perce Pence Pence
Basic 12 55 127 928
Diluted 12 46 (325) LAl

The restatement of revenue and operating profit 1s in respect of 5C5 and 1s for UK and Defence revenue streams The segmental
analysis (note 1) and other relevant notes for the yvear ended 30 Apnl 2009 have been restated accordingly
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 Apnil 2010

10. Prior year restatement (continued)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 Apnil 2010

As previously
reported  Restatement As restated
£'000 £000 £'000
Assets
HNon-current assets
Goodwill 31,043 - 31,043
Other intangible assets 1,227 - 1,227
Property, plant and equipment 4,727 - 4,727
Deferred tax asset 266 - 266
37,263 - 37,263
Current assets
Inventories 359 - 359
Trade and other recewables 24,275 (1,837} 11,438
Derwvative financial instruments 178 - 178
Cash and cash equivalents 7,511 - 7,511
32,383 (1,837) 30,486
Total assets 69,586 (1,837) 67,749
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (16,164) - (16,164}
Current tax labilities (1,507) 514 (993)
Other loans (32) - (32}
Denvative financial instruments (68) - (68)
Bank borrowangs (3,167) - (3,167)
Provisions (1,528) - (1,528)
(22,466) 514 (21,952)
Non-current hiabilities
Bank borrowings (615) - (615)
Deferred tax hability (920) - (920)
(1,535) - (1,535)
Total Liabihities (24,001) 514 (23,487
Net assets 45,585 (1,323} 44,262
Equity
Share capital 4,059 - 4,059
Share premium account 29,297 - 29,297
Hedge reserve (49) - (49}
Share option reserve 266 - 266
Retained earnings 12,012 {1,323) 10,689
Total equaty attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent 45,585 (1,323) 44,262
11 Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwall Other intangible assets
SEA MASS Group SEA MASS. Group
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 { 000
Cost
At 1 May 2008 18,895 12,148 31,043 1,160 1,560 2,720
At 1 May 2009 and 30 Aprit 2010 18,895 12,148 31,043 1,160 1,340 2,500
Amortisation
At 1 May 2008 - - - 145 588 733
Charge for the year ended 30 April 2009 - - — 290 250 540
At 1 May 2009 - - - 435 838 1,273
Charge for the year ended 30 April 2010 - - - 290 305 595
At 30 Apnil 2010 - - - 725 1,143 1,868
Net book value
At 30 Apnil 2010 18,895 12,148 31,043 435 197 632
At 30 April 2009 18,895 12,148 31,043 725 502 1,227

Goodwll anses on the acquisttion of subsidianes These subsidianes are the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated

The adjustment for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 1n respect of other intangible assets of previously acquired subsidianes reflects
the settlement of the MASS earn-out at £280,000 {including costs), £220,000 less than the provision (£500,000) established at the
time of acquisition The amartisation has been adjusted accordingly

The amortisation charge described on page 43 15 disclosed as *‘Amortisation of other intangible assets’ in the income statement
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11 Goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the subsidianes (cash-generating units) are determined from value n use calculations

The key assumptions for the value 1n use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and any other factors
which may affect future performance as known of 1n the current penod

The Group's subsidianes have prepared cash flow forecasts as part of the recent annual budgetary process, as approved by
management This provides the next three years' cash flow forecasts which have been extrapolated forward at an estimated
long-term growth rate of 2 25% (2009 2 25%) The cash flow forecasts are prepared on a consistent basis based upon each
subsidiary’s budget To this has been applied the Group’s estimated weighted average cost of capital of 11 5% (2009 11 0%)

The Group's WACC 15 an estimate based upen the Company's current equity risk, market interest rates, Company debt interest
rates and market equity nsk The same rate of WACC and long-term growth rate have been applied to the assessment of the
carrying value of goodwill for both MASS and SEA, since the businesses have similar market experience and exposures

On the basis of these tests, no impairment of goodwill has ansen n the year ended 30 Apnl 2010 The test on the goodwill
n respect of SEA revealed a low level of headroom of the discounted cash flow compared with the carmying value of goodwill
and an ncrease 1n the weighted average cost of capitat to 13 5% would result in a small impairment of £0 3m

The other intangible assets also anse on the acquisition of the subsidianes and are analysed above

These intangible assets are 1n respect of acquired contracts of each of MASS and SEA and contracts to be secured n respect
of MASS

The other intangible assets are amortised over the expected lives of acquired contracts and contracts to be secured, as follows

Remaining
period of
Cther amortisation at
intangible Expected 30 Apnl
assets tife 10
£'000 Years Years
MASS
Contracts acquired 1,060 4 025
Contracts to be secured 280 7 325
1,340
SEA
Contracts acquired 1,160 4 150

The contracts to be secured were 1n respect of certain overseas opportunities for which further consideration was payable 1f
secured 10 accordance with the terms of the acquisition of MASS This figure was reduced from the estimate of £500,000 at the
date of acquisition to £280,000 followang settlement of the MASS earn-out on 5 June 2009

12. Property, plant and equipment

Equipment,

Land and  fixtures and

buntdings fittings Total
Group £ 000 £°000 £:000
Cost
At 1 May 2008 4,307 2,976 7,283
Additions 2 430 432
Disposals - (142) (142)
At 1 May 2009 4,309 3,264 7,573
Additions 2,393 1,402 3,795
Disposals - (567) {567)
At 30 Apnl 2010 6,702 4,099 10,801
Deprecration
At 1 May 2008 346 2,07 2,417
Charge in the year 82 481 563
Eliminated on disposal - (134) {134)
At 1 May 2009 428 2,418 2,846
Charge 1n the year 82 475 557
Eliminated on disposal - {532) (532)
At 30 April 2010 510 2,361 2,871
Net book vatue
At 30 April 2010 6,192 1,738 7,930
At 30 April 2009 3,881 B46 4,727

The Company’s property, plant and equipment was £17,000 at 30 Apnl 2010 (2009 £22,000)

The depreciation charge 1s disclosed within ‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2010

12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The additions to ‘land and buitdings’ includes £2,388,000 n respect of Enterprise House which was not occupied by MASS as at
30 Apnil 2010 The land element of Enterpnise House 1s estimated at £0 8m Additions to equipment, fixtures and fittings included
£599,000 i respect of Enterprise House refurtishment No depreciation was charged n respect of this asset for the year ended
30 Apnl 2010 The property, plant and equipment has been pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities

13. Investment in subsidianes and joint ventures

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £7000 £'000 £'000
Subsidhary undertakings - - 42,203 42,203

Joint ventures - - - -
- — 42,203 42,203

The Group’s joint venture investment, AGS sold 1ts business at 1 August 2009, realising a profit before tax for the Group of
£200,000 As at 30 Apnl 2010, AGS owes the Group £997,000 (2009 £1,071,000) which was fully provided against at 30 Apnil 2010
and 30 April 2009

A List of the sigmficant investments 1n joint ventures and subsidianes 1s as foltows

Propartion of
shareholding
Country of Type of and voting
Name of Company ragistration shares nghts held Nature of business
rectly owned
Systems Consultants Services Limited (5CS) England  Ordinary 100% Technical cansultancy
MASS Limited England  Ordinary 100% Holding company of MASS Consultants Limited
SEA (Group) Lirmited (SEA) England  Ordinary 100% Holding company of Systems Engineening and
Assessment Lmited, Beckington Castle Lirmted
and various dormant subsidianes
Held through a subsidiary
MASS Consultants Limited (MASS) England Ordinary 100% Electronic warfare, managed services, secure
communications and IT support services
Systems Engineering & Assessment Limited England  Ordinary 100% Deliverer of systems engineering, software and
electronic engineering services and solutions to
Defence, Space, Transport and Off-shore sectors
Beckington Castle Limited England  Ordinary 100% Property company holding freehold of
Beckington Castle
Advanced Geospatial Solutions Lirmited (AGS) England  Ordinary S0% Formerly 3D mapping technology {business of AGS
sold 1 August 2009)
Dhgital Millennmium Map LLP (DMM) England  Orchnary 25% 2D digntal mapping - 1n administration

DMM and AGS, which are both retained as investments of the Group, are not accounted for under the equity method of accounting
as the Group ceased to have an active participation from 1 November 2006 and 30 April 2009 respectively

On 14 May 2010 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary shares of Abacus EW Consultancy Limited through 1ts subsichary MASS
Consultants Limited Abacus EW 1s incorporated i England and carnes on electronic warfare training services

All shares held n subsidhanes and joint ventures are the same class and carry equal weighting to any shares held by
other shareholders

For wformation, the performance of DMM for the year ended 30 Apnil 2010 was as follows
Year ended Cumulative to

30 April 30 April

2010 2010

£000 £1000

Unrecognised share of profit/(loss) 40 (268)
Revenues 164 2,540
Expenses (5) (3,614
Profit/{loss) 159 (1,074)
2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Total assets 121 44
Total habilities (33) 3)

The Group has received and continues to receive a return on 1its onginal 1nvestment in DMM
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13. Investment n subsidiaries and joint ventures (continued)
For information, the performance of AGS for the year ended 30 April 2010 was as follows
Year ended Cumulative to

30 April 30 Apnl

2010 2010

£'000 £ 000

Unrecognised share of profit/{loss) 20 (590)
Revenues - 889
Expenses 40 (2,069)
Profit/ (loss) 40 (1,180)
2010 2009

€000 £°000

Total assets 5 28
Totat habilities {1,144) (1,208)

AGS sold its business 1 August 2009 The Group retains 1ts investment 1 AGS and may receive n the future further consideration
n respect of the business disposal

Company
The Company’s investments in subsidianes are as follows
2010 2009
£'000 £000
MASS 14,328 14,328
SCS 1,584 1,584
SEA 26,291 76,291

42,203 42,203

14. Inventories

2010 7009
£'000 £ 000
Fimshed goods 440 359

The inventory at 30 April 2010 1s after a stock provision of £227,000 (2009 £20,000) The stock provision inctudes £207,000 1n
respect of the offshare division of SEA, clased before the year-end The offshore stock provision was charged as an exceptional
item (see note 3)

15 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2009

2010 (restated) 2010 2009

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 246 2,028
Trade recevables 15,418 16,082 - -
Amounts recoverable on contracts 6,171 5,218 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 1,248 1,138 73 39
22,837 12,438 319 2,067

The Group trade recewables at 30 April 2009 have been reduced by £1,837,000 from £16,082,000 previously reported to
£14,245,000 as a result of the wnite off of amounts recoverable on contracts at SCS which were recorded 1n error (see note 10)

The average credit period taken on sales of goods 1s 50 days {2009 52 days) Of the trade recevables balance, £4 2m was
considered overdue at 30 Apnil 2010 (2009 £3 3m) An allowance has been made for estimated recoverable amounts from the sale
of goods and services of £164,000 (2009 £Nil) This allowance 1s determined by management’s best estimate, by reference to the
particular recevables over which doubt may exist None of the other trade and other receivables were past due

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewvables appraxamates to ther fair values The largest trade
receivable to which the Group 15 exposed at 30 Apnil 2010 15 the MOD, with a balance outstanding of £4 2m (2009 £8 1m)

Trade receivables include £4 1m (2009 £1 1m) denominated n foreign currency
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 Apnil 2010

16. Trade and other payables

Group Carnpany

2010 2009 2010 2009

£'000 £'000 £000 £/000

Advance receipts 1,680 2,509 - -
Trade payables 8,372 7,623 50 55
Other payables 24 14 24 14
Social secunity and other taxes 2,123 2,499 44 15
Accruals 2,918 3,519 223 515
15,117 16,164 L] 619

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing contract costs Advance
receipts reflect invoicing ahead of work done in accordance with contracted terms The average credit penod taken for trade
purchases 1s 26 days (2009 47 days)

Trade, other payables, taxes and accruals are all due for settlement within twelve months of the year-end, the majornty within
three months The advance receipts will unwind over the next twelve months

Social secunty and other taxes includes employment taxes and VAT

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approxamates to their fair values
Total payable includes £1 5m (2009 £0 1m) denominated in foreign currency

17 Other loans

The other loans are 1n respect of financing assets acquired In the past by SEA They are not finance leases and are not secured over
the asset financed or any other asset of the Group

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Other loans - 32 - -
These borrowings are repayable as follows
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ om0
On demand or within one year - 32 - -
In the second year - = - -
- 32 - -
Less amounts due for settlement within twelve months {(shown under current habilities) - (32) - -
Amount due for settlement after twelve months - = - -
All borrowings are 1n sterling
The weighted average nterest rates paid were as follows
2010 2009
% H
Other loans 699 710

The Directors consider the carrying amount of other loans approxamates to their fair values
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18. Bank borrowings

JE3), 343 40 MAIADY

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £1000 £7000 £ 000
Bank overdrafis - - 3,081 13,199
Bank loans 3,615 3,782 3,000 3,000
3,615 3,782 6,091 16,199
These borrowings are repayable as follows
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £1000 £'000 £ 00¢
On demand or wathin one year 3,171 3,167 6,091 16,199
In the second year 130 17 - -
In the third to fifth years inclusive 258 302 - -
After five years 56 142 - -
3,615 3,782 6,091 16,199
Less amounts due for settlement within twelve months (shown under current Liabilities) {3,171) (3,167) {6,091) {16,199)
Amount due for settlement after twelve months 444 615 - -
All borrowings are 1n sterling and secured over all the fixed and floating assets of the Group
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows
2010 2009
% %
Bank overdrafts - -
Bank toans 370 603

The bank overdrafts are repayable on demand The Group operates a sterling current account offset facility The interest rate
applicable to the overdraft faciity when drawn s at 2 25% {2009 1 75%) above the Bank of England base rate

The bank loans of the Group are as follows

1 £3 Om structured debt facility of 364 days with an option to term the loan out (fix the repayment penod of the borrowing}
for up to three years during the 364 day penod, at a floating rate of 2 00% to Z 75% above LIBOR, fixed in advance on one
to six month terms, and

1 £0 6m n mortgages repayable over 15 years with completion dates of 26 February 2012 and 8 July 2017 for £0 1m and
£0 5m respectively

The interest rates on these mortgages are floating at 1 5% above LIBOR with £476,000 fixed via an nterest rate swap at 6 38%
The weighted average penod untit matunty of the fixed interest loan was six years and for the vanable rate loans was one year

At 30 Apnil 2010, the Group had available £2 5m of undrawn committed overdraft facility and £7 Om of undrawn commatted
structured debt faciity The Dwrectors consider the carrying amount of bank borrowings approximate thewr fair value

The Group’s net funds at 30 Apnl 2010 of £3 Om are all with RBS

19, Provisions

Onerous Other
SEA MASS Withdrawat lease contract related
earn out earn out from AGS Restructunng  commetment Warranty provisions Total
Group £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
At 1 May 2008 4,672 500 - - - 101 677 5,950
Charged to the income statement - — 210 - - 42 218 470
Adjustment to other intangible assets - (220) - - - - - (220)
Earn-out payment (4,672) - - = — - - {4,672)
At 1 May 2009 - 280 210 - - 143 895 1,528
Charged/ (credited) to the income statement - - (66) 105 215 247 1,243 1,744
Utilised - - (122) - - (85} (320) (527)
Reclassification from trade and other payables - - - - - - 101 101
Earn-put payment - (280) - - - - - (280)
At 30 April 2010 - - 22 105 215 305 1,919 2,566
Provisions due less than one year - - 22 105 60 305 1,919 2,411
Provisions due greater than one year - - - — 155 - - 155
At 30 Apnil 2010 - - 22 105 215 305 1,919 2,566
Provisions due less than ene year - 280 10 - - 143 895 1,528
Prowvisions due greater than one year - - - - — - - -
At 30 April 2009 - 280 210 - - 143 895 1,528
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 April 2010

19 Provisions (continued)
The batance at 1 May 2008 has been restated from £5,548,000 to £5,950,000 by a £402,000 increase in the set up on acquisition
provisicn n respect of other contract related provisions acquired with SEA

The SEA earn-out was earned n full and paid on 11 July 2008

The MASS earn-out was 1n respect of the obligation of the Group to settle deferred consideration payable to the vendors of MASS
on receving certain overseas contracts as set cut in the sale and purchase agreement pertaining to the acquisition On 5 June
2009, agreement was reached to pay the vendors of MASS £280,000 (after costs) in full settlement of the eam-out The earn-out
was paid on 11 June 2009

The warranty provisions are management's best estimates of the Group’s lability under warranties granted on software and other
products supphed and 1s based upon past expenence The timing of such expenditure 1s uncertain although warranties generally
have a time limit of no more than twelve months, unless a longer warranty penod 1s purchased by the customer

The ather contract related provisions are management’s best estimate of the Group's exposure te contract related costs and
undertakings which are 1n addition to contract accruals The timing of these 1s uncertain but expected to be resolved within
twelve months of the balance sheet date Other contract related provisions include property dilapidation provisions

The restructuning provision 1s 1n respect of 5CS and 1s expected to be utihsed in the next twelve months

The onerous lease commitment 15 1n respect of MASS's continuing lease obligations on 1ts property 1n St Neots which 1t 1s vacating
n the summer of 2010 to enter 1ts new freehold property, Enterpnse House Plans to enter Enterpnse House have been in place
since November 2009 and the relocation 15 proceeding to ptan

The provisions do not include the Abacus EW earn out of up to £1 8m (see note 30) which was acqurred after the year-end on
14 May 2010

SEA Mass
eam-out eam-out Total
Compary £'000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 May 2008 4,672 500 5,172
Adjustment to other ntangible assets - (220) (220)
Earn-out payment (4,672) - (4,672
At 1 mMay 2009 - 280 280
Adjustment to other mntangible assets - - -
Earn-out payment - (280} (280)
At 30 Apnl 2010 - - -
At 30 Apnil 2010
Provisions due less than one year - - -
Provisions due greater than one year - - -
At 30 April 2009
Provisions due less than one year - 280 280
Provisions due greater than one year - - -
- 280 280
20. Deferred tax
Accelerated Other Othet short
ax intangible  Revaluation  term timing
depreciation assets of building  differences Tax losses Derivatives Group
£'000 £ 00O £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
AL 1 May 2008 43 - (649) [ — - {600)
(Charge)/credit to the income statement (283) — - 260 - (50) {73)
Credit to equity - - - - - 19 19
At 1 May 2009 (240) - (649) 266 - (31) (654)
(Charge}/credit to the income statement 13 177) - 21 457 65 639
Debit to equity — - - - - (23) (23)
At 30 April 2010 (227) (177 (649) 537 467 1 (38)

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset The following 15 the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)

for financal reporting purposes

2010 2009

E'000 £ 000

Asset 1,015 266
Liability (1,053) {920)
(38) (634)
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20. Deferred tax (continued)

At the balance sheet date the Group had unused trading tax losses within its subsidiares of £1 6m (2009 losses of £1 7m)
available for offset against future profits and recognised as a deferred tax as at 30 April 2010 (not recogmised at 30 Apnl 2009
due to uncertainty regarding recoverability of tax tosses) These tax losses can all be carned forward indefimtely

The deferred tax liabihity in respect of the revaluation of freehold building arose on the acquisition of SEA and 1s the potential tax
hability payable on the revaluation gain in respect of the building with reference to 1ts historical cost

The Company’s deferred tax batance at 30 Apnl 2010 was an asset of £4,000 (2009 £Nil) beng 1n respect of other short-term
timing differences

21 Derivative financial instruments

2010 2009
£7000 £'000
Assets
Foreign currency forward contracts - 178
Interest rate swap 15 -
Deferred tax on interest rate swap (see note 20) 4) -
11 178
Liabibties
Foreign currency forward contracts {53) -
Interest rate swap - {68)
Deferred tax on interest rate swap (see note 20} - 19
(53) (49)

Currency denvatives
The Group utibises forward currency contracts to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows The Group 1s party
to a number of foreign currency forward contracts in the management of 1ts foreign exchange rate exposure

The changes n total outstanding commtted forewgn currency forward contracts of the Group were as follows

2010 2009
£'00C €000 €000 €000
At forward exchange rates
At 1 May 3,493 4,100 2,228 3,000
Transferred to the income statement 1n respect of matured contracts (2,894) {3,350) (2,078) (2,800)
New contracts 10,771 12,279 3,343 3,900
At 30 Apnl 11,370 13,029 3,493 4,100
Fair value adjustment, {33) 178
At 30 Apnil at closing spot rate 11,317 3,671
As at 30 Aprt, the matunty of the outstanding contracts was as follows
2010 2009
£'000 €'000 £ 000 €000
Within one year 9,286 10,629 2,894 3,350
One to two years 1,437 1,650 599 750
Greater than two years 647 750 - -
11,370 13,029 3,493 4,100

£231,000 has been charged to the income statement in respect af marking the outstanding contracts at 30 April 2010 (2009 credit of
£47,000) to fair value with a corresponding adjustment to the fair value denvative financial instrument recognised 1n the balance

sheet, a hability of £53,000 at 30 Aprit 2010 (2009 asset of £178,000) This charge of £231,000 (as was the credit of £47,000 1n 2009)
was disclosed within the SEA adjusted operating profit in the segmental analysis (see note 1)

Interest rate swaps
The Group uses an nterest rate swap to manage its exposure (0 interest rate mavements on ts mortgage borrowmngs

A contract with nominal value of £476,000 (2009 £612,000) has fixed interest payments at a rate of 6 38% for penods up until
August 2016

The fair value of the swap entered into at 30 April 2010 15 estimated at £491,000 {2009 £544,000) These amounts are based
on market values of equivalent instruments at 30 Apnil 2010

This interest rate swap s designated and effective as a cash flow hedge The change In fair value (£83,000) has been recognised
as a credst to equity with a corresponding debit to denvative financial instruments The balance sheet at 30 Apnl 2010 contained
a detnt balance of £15,000 (2009 credit balance of £68,000) n respect of denvative financial instruments
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 April 2010

22, Share capital

010 2009
Number Number

Allotted, called up and fully paid 10p ordinary shares

40,786,788 40,590,943

Movement 1n allotted, called up and fully pard 10 pence ordinary shares

Number
At 1 May 2008 40,456,417
Share options exercised 134,526
At 1 May 2009 40,590,943
Share optlons exercised 195,845
At 30 Apnl 2010 40,786,788
The following share options were unexercised at 30 Apnl 2010
Options over Opbon
10p ordinary {exercise)
Date of shares Price Exercise
Descnption of opticn grant Number £ penod
Cohort plc 2006 Share option scheme 8 March 2006 136,178 1230 9 March 2009 to 8 March 2016
10 July 2006 41,554 1 410 10 July 2009 to 9 July 2016
15 January 2007 19,337 1 810 25 January 2010 to 24 January 2017
1% February 2007 215,475 1770 20 February 2010 to 19 February 2017
21 August 2007 76,525 1 660 22 August 2010 to 21 August 2017
11 July 2008 423,199 1 890 12 July 2011 to 11 July 2018
5 August 2009 517,199 175 6 August 2012 to 5 August 2009
1,430,467
Save as you earn (SAYE) scheme 5 May 2006 71,724 1123
26 January 2007 147,164 145
12 February 2008 349,914 133
18 August 2009 310,237 138
879,039
2,309,506
23, Reserves
Profit
and loss Total
Share Share account {eserves
pretmuimy option Hedge (restated - (restated -
account reserve reserve note 10) note 10}
Group £7000 £000 £'000 £000 £ 000
At 1 May 2008 29,158 200 - 7,439 36,797
Share options exercised 139 - - - 139
Equity dividends - - - (627) {627)
Cash flow hedges - losses taken to equity (net of tax) - - (49) - (49}
Share-based payments - 184 - - 184
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting of options - {118) - 118 —
Profit for the year (see note below) — — — 3,759 3,759
At 1 May 2009 29,297 266 (49) 10,689 40,203
Share options exercised 122 - - - 122
Equity dividends - - - (754) {754)
Cash flow hedges - losses taken to equity (net of tax) - - 60 - 60
Share-based payments - 259 — - 259
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting of options - (146) - 146 -
Profit for the year - ~ - 2,19 2,2
At 30 April 2010 29,519 379 1 12,372 42,281

The profit for the year ended 30 Apnl 2009 has been restated for the overstatement at 5CS {note 10), profit for the year being reduced
from £5,082,000 to £3,759,000 by a reductien of profit before tax (£1,837,000) less a reduction in the tax charge in respect of this

adjustment (£514,000)
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23 Reserves {continued)

Share Share Profit
premium option and loss Total
account reserve accaunt reserves
Company £'000 £'000 £°000 £2000
At 1 May 2008 29,158 3] 80 29,259
Share options exercised 139 - - 13%
Equity dividends - - (627) (627)
Share-based payments - 12 - 12
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting of options - {16) 16 -
Profit for the year - - 552 552
At 1 May 2009 29,297 17 21 29,335
Share options exercised 222 - - 222
Equity dividends - - (754) (754)
Share-based payments - 20 - 20
Transfer of share option reserve on vesting of options - {9) 9 -
Profit for the year - - 3,209 3,209
At 30 April 2010 29,519 28 2,485 32,032
24 Net cash generated from operating activities
Group Company
2009
(restated -
2010 note 10} 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £1000 £'000
Profit for the year 2,291 3,759 3,209 552
Adjustments for
Share of results of joint ventures - 224 - -
Tax expense/{credit) 457 858 {(10) (148)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 557 563 ] 1
Amartisation of other intangible assets 595 540 - -
Net finance cost 142 208 121 167
Share-based payment 259 184 20 12
Derivative financial instruments 231 (47) - -
{ncrease 1n provisions 1,318 612 - -
Operating cash flows before movements i working capitat 5,850 6,901 3,346 584
Increase n inventories (288) (213) - -
(Increase)/decrease in recetvables (399) {2,247) 1,414 594
(Decrease)/increase n payables (736) 3,540 62 {99)
(1,423) 1,081 1,476 495
Cash generated from operations 4,427 7,982 4,822 1,079
Tax paid (286) (408) - -
Interest paid {180) (303) {(137) (245)
Net cash generated from operating activities 3,961 7.271 4,685 834
25, Commitments
There were £328,000 of capital commitments at 30 Apnl 2010 (2009 £Nil) These were manly in respect of the refurbishment
of Enterpnse House, MASS"s new facility in 5t Neots
26. Operating lease arrangements
2010 200%
Group £1000 £ 00D
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year
- land and bunldings 1,080 759
- other 147 151
1,227 910
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2010

26, Operating lease arrangements {(continued)
At 30 Apnil 2010 the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £'000

Land and bunldings
- leases which expire within one year 35 33
- leases which expire 1n the second to fifth year inclusive 637 796
- leases which expire after five years 3,874 2,995
4,546 3,824

Other

- leases which expire within one year 29 16
- leases which expire 1n the second to fifth year inclusive 223 76
- leases which expire after five years - 202
252 294
4,798 4,118

Significant leasing arrangements held by the Group are 1n respect of 1ts operating facilities 1n 5t Neots, Lincoln, Bristol, Theale and
Henley-on-Thames

The lease on MASS's current operating property 1n St Neots (Grove House) ts £67,200 per annum and 1s due to cease on 31 May 2013
MASS 15 due to enter their new freehold property (Enterpnse House) which was purchased in the final quarter of 2609 and has
since been refurbished, in the Summer of 2010

In respect of all the Group’s operating leases (including the Company’s), there 1s no contingent rent payable, no escalation clauses
and no restnctions for further leasing or restrictions on the Group’s ability to access debt or pay dvidends

None of the sigmficant operating leases entered into by the Group have any renewal or purchase options

2010 2009
Company £°000 £'000
Mimmum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year
- land and butldings 79 73

At 30 April 2010 the Company had outstanding commitments for future mmmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows

2010 2009
£1000 £'000
Land and buildings
- leases which expire wathin one year 26 )

27. Share-based payments

The Group plan provides for a grant pnce equal to the average quoted market pnce of the Group shares on the date of grant
The vesting pertod 15 generally three years, five years in the case of some SAYE schemes If options under the Cohort plc 2006
Share option scheme remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant, the options expire Furthermore,
options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest

2010 2005
‘Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exerase
price prce
Options [ Options £
Qutstanding at 1 May 1,010,783 156 1,678,769 140
Granted dunng the year 980,700 159 575,014 189
Forfeited during the year (480,978) 167 (108,474) 141
Exercised during the year {195,845) 123 (134,526) 113
Exptred duning the year (5,100) 123 - -
Outstanding at 30 Apnit 2,309,560 158 2,010,783 156
Exercisable at 30 Aprl 504,247 154 242,660 126

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised duning the year was £1 72 (2009 £1 60)
The options outstanding at 30 Apnl 2010 had a weighted average exercise pnce of £1 58 (2009 £1 56) and a weighted average
remaiming contractual bife of six years (2009 six years)

In the year ended 30 Apnl 2010, options were granted as follaws 617,777 on 5 August 2009 and 362,923 on 18 August 2009 The fair
vatue of the options granted on those dates were £1 715 and £1 38 respectively In the year ended 30 April 2009, 575,014 options
were granted on 11 July 2008 at a fair value on that date of £1 89 per option
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27. Share-based payments (continued)
The inputs into the Quoted Compamies Alliance model, a Black Scholes based binominal model, are as follows

2010 2009
Weighted average share pnce £143 E1 82
Weighted average exercise price £1 58 E156
Expected volatility 0% - 38% 0%
Risk free rate 291%-5 75% 291% -5 75%
Leaver rate (per annumy) 6 5%-10 0% 6 5%
Dividend yreld 0 26%-062% 0 26% -0 33%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the mstoncal volatiity of the Group's share pnce over the previous two years
The leaver rate used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations

The Group recognised a cost of £259,000 (2009 £184,000) relating to share-based payment transactions which are all equity
settled, an equivalent amount beng transferred to the share option reserve (see note 23)

28. Pension commitments
The Group makes centnbutions to defined contnbution stakeholder pension schemes The contnbutions for the year of £1,585,000
(2009 £1,326,000) were charged to the income statement Centnibutions outstanding at 30 Apnl 2010 were £153,000 (2009 £195,000)

29 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes are as follows

Managernent Dividends Group relief
fees received  recetved from  sutendered 1o

€000 £'000 £'000
2010 1,200 3,300 23
2009 800 1,000 148
Transactions between the Group and its Joint ventures are disclosed below
Changes in
toans/current
Investment account/
Purchases Sates inyear  sales ledger
£'000 £ 000 £000 £'000
Advanced Geospatial Solutions (AGS)
2010 - - - (196)
2009 = — - (67)
Digital Mitlennium Map LLP (DMM)
2010 - - {26) -
2009 - — (30) (42)

The change 1n the loans, current accounts and sales ledgers reflects purchases, sales and suppart costs to the related party undertakings
less any receipts received

The relationships are descnibed as follows

@ AGS - the interest 1n which 15 owned by SCS, a 50% joint venture From t May 2009 this has been accounted for as an nvestment,
the Group no longer having an active participation in this entity

® DMM - the interest 1n which 15 owned by 5C5, a 25% jont venture From 1 November 2006 this has been accounted for as an
investment, the Group no longer having an active participation n this entity

The Group 15 expected to have ne significant transactions with either AGS or DMM

The Group had a leasing agreement (dated 27 February 2006) with the Court House Partnership to lease the Court House at an annual
rent of £57,000 for an iitial period of five years, terminable by the Group wath six months' notice at no penalty Stanley Carter

(a Director of Cohort plc) 1s a partner in the Court House Partnership SCS vacated the Court House on 31 March 2010 with 1its tease
commitment ceasing at that point The Group’s dilapidation obligations n respect of the Court House are still to be determined
and an estimate has been provided for at 30 April 2010 The transactions with Directors of the Company are disclosed in the
Remuneration & Appointments Committee Report on pages 26 to 28
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 Apnl 2010

29. Related party transactions (continued)
Dunng the year ended 30 Apnil 2010, the Directors of Cohort plc receved dividends from the Company as follows

2010 2009

£ [3

5 Carter 197,076 165,009
N Prest 38,325 32,001
AThomis 616 345
Sir Robert Walmsley 378 277
5 Walther 403 155

236,798 197,787

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in the Remuneration & Appointments Committee Report
{pages 26 to 28)

The aggregate remuneration details of the key management of the Group were as follows

2010 2009

£ 4

Salary (including any allowances, benefits and emptoyers NI} 943,749 1,074,792
Employers pension contribution 22,299 23,942
Long-term benefits - -
Termination payments or benefits 30,000 119,254
Share option cost 37,073 37,432

1,033,121 1,255,420

The key management of the Group 1s the Board of Cohort plc plus the Managing Director of each subsidiary

30. Post balance sheet events

On 14 May 2010 the Group's subsichary, MASS Consuitants Limited completed the acquisition of the entire share capital of Abacus
EW Consultancy Limited for an imtial cash consideration of £1 Om and deferred cash consideration of up to £1 8m payable over
three years from completion according to the performance of Abacus EW over the three year penod to 30 April 2013

At the time of publishing this Annual Report, the completion accounts have not been finalised and the estimated details of the
transaction are as follows

@ Costs of acquisitien of £100,000 £75,000 of acqwisition costs have been charged as an exceptional item for the year ended
30 Apnil 2010 1n respect of this acquisition 10 accordance with IFRS 3 (Revised)

® Acguired net assets, including cash of £22,000

® Other 1ntangible assets of just under £2 9m to be wnitten off over two to three years depending upon the respective lives
of each other intangible asset Other ntangible assets compnses acquired contracts, ntellectual property rights 1n respect
of software and key employees

® The goodwill of £29,000 (before deferred tax liability} 1s not to be amartised but tested annually for impawrment in future penods

@ Deferred tax liability of approximately £800,000 in respect of the other intangible asset to be recogmsed on acquisition and
accounted for as part of the acquired goodwill

Abacus EW will be reported as part of the Group's MASS segment 1n future reporting penods and 1ts accounting year-end has been
aligned with the Group’s at 30 Apnl

31 Contingent habilities
At 30 Apnl 2010 the Group has n place as advance payment guarantee of £175,000 (2009 £Nil) with RBS This guarantee was
in respect of 5CS's new leased property, Arlington House
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Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

Both the parent company finanoal statements and the Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors
n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU {Adopted IFRSs) On publishing the parent
company financial statements here together wath the Group financial statements, the Company 1s taking advantage of the exemption
n 408 of the Compames Act 2006 not to present its indvidual income statement and related nates that form part of these approved
financial statements

As hightighted in note 18 to the financial statements, the Company meets its day to day working capital requirements through an
offsetting facility which 1s due for renewal in October 2010 Both the current economic conditions and strategic defence review
create uncertainty particularly over (a) the level of demand for the Group’s products, (b) the exchange rate between sterling and
Euro and thus the consequence for certain long term contracts, and {c) the availability of bank finance n the foreseeable future

The Company’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes 1n trading performance, show that
the Company should be able to operate wathin the level of 1ts current, faciity The Company will open renewal negotiations with
the bank 1n due course and has at this stage not sought any wntten commitment that the facility wilt be renewed However,
the Company has held discussion with its bankers about its future borrowing needs and no matters have been drawn to 1ts
attention to suggest that renewal may not be forthcoming on acceptable terms

The Directors have a reasanable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue 1n operational existence
for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the geing concern basis in prepanng the annual financial statements

Further information regarding the Company’s business actities, together with the factors Likely to affect its future development,
performance and position 1s set out 1n the Business Review on pages 12 to 17 The financial position of the Company, 1ts cash flows,
liqundity position and borrowing facilities are described in the Financial Directors’ Review on pages 6to 11

In additian the Finance Director’s Review of the financial statements includes the Company’s objectives, polictes and processes
for managing 1ts capital, 1ts financiat nsk management objectives, details of its financial istruments and hedging activities,
and 1ts exposures to credit rnisk and liqurdity nsk

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incarporate the financial statements of the Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings made
up to 30 Apnl 2010 Subsidianes acquired duning the year are censolidated from the date of acquisition, using the purchase method
{see business combinations below)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bning the aceounting policies used nto {ine
with those used by the Group This 1s necessary as the Group’s subsidianes continue to prepare statutory financial statements in
accordance with UK GAAP

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consalidation

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidianes 1s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 1s measured as the
aggregate of the fair values, at the completion date, of assets acquired, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquired subsichary As from 1 May 2009, the costs of acquisition have been
charged to the Group income statement as an exceptional item in accordance wath IFRS 3 (Revised)

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combinatron aver the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the 1dentifiable intangible assets, assets, habilities and contingent
habilities recogrised If, after reassessment, which 1s a point 1n time greater than twelve manths after the completion date, the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent habiities exceeds or 1s below
the cost of the business combination, the excess or shortfall 15 recognised immediately i the income statement

Adjustments to the provisional value of assets and hiabibties acquired in a business combination when the final values have
become known within twelve months are adjusted as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date and the
comparative information for pnar penods 1s restated accordingly

Any change 1n consideration, where previously estimated, 1s immediately recogmised as an exceptional item n the iInceme statement
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Accounting Policies continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arsing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's mterest 1n the fair value of the
dentifiable ntangible assets, assets and habilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition
Goodwill 15 imtially recogmsed as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
Goodwll which 1s recogmsed as an asset 1s reviewed for imparment at least annually Any impairment 1s recogmsed immediately
1n the Income statement as an exceptienal item and 1s not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 15 allocated to each of the Group’s subsichanes as appropriate Subsidianes
{cash generating umts) to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
15 an indication that the umt may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the subsidiary 15 less than the carrying amount of
the subsidiary, the impairment loss 15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the subsidiary
and then to the other assets of the subsidiary pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the subsidiary

An impairment loss recogmised for goodwll 1s not reversed 1n a subsequent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or Jointly controlled entity, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s included 1n the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Revenue recogmtion
Revenue 1s recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receiwvable for the provision of goods and services,
excluding discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes

Sales of goods are recogmised when goods are delivered and title has passed

Revenue from contracts I1s recagnised as the actmity progresses to reflect the partial performance of contractual obligations
In the case of long-term contracts, revenue 1s recognised appropnate to the stage of completion when the outcome of the
contract can be assessed with reasonable certainty

In most cases, revenue for the Group 1s based upon costs incurred with appropnate contingency applied where key deliverables
have not yet been achieved

Profit recogmtion on contracts generally follows revenue recognition with appropnate prudence applied to take account of contract
cost to complete, nsks and uncertainties

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially atl the nsks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value or, 1f lower, at the present value of the
mimmum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding liability to the lessor 1s 1ncluded in
the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reductron of the

lease obhigation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaimng balance of the liability

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Benefits received and recewvable as an incentive to enter into an eperating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over
the lease term

Foreign currencies

The indmvidual financial statements of each Group Company are presented In the currency of the pnmary economic environment
n which 1t operates (its functional currency), which 15 currently sterling for the whole Group Far the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial pesition of each Group Company are expressed 1n pounds sterling, which 1s the functional
currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements

In prepanng the financial statements of the indmdual compantes, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functignal
currency {forewgn currencies} are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance
sheet date, monetary assets and llabilities that are denominated 1n foregn currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date

Exchange differences ansing on the settlement of monetary 1tems, and on the retransiation of monetary items, are included n the
ncome statement for the year

In order to hedge 1ts exposure to certan foreign exchange nsks, the Group enters into forward contracts (see page 60 for details
of the Group’s Accounting Policies in respect of such derivative financial instruments)

Borrowing costs
All borrowng costs are recogmsed in the income statement in the period 1n which they are incurred unless, where appropnate,
nterest costs are capitalised into assets, fixed and current
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Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and the deferred tax expense or credit

The tax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported In the income
statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s habiity for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilities
1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used i the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using
the balance sheet Liability method Deferred tax liabiities are generally recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and Liabilities are not recogmsed 1f the temporary difference anses from the
nitial recogmtion of goodwall or fram the imitial recagnition (other than 1n a business combination) of other assets and habilities
in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments 1n subsidianes and associates,
and interest n joint ventures, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temparary difference and it 1s
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 1 the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the period when the Liability 15 settled or the asset
1s reahised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the incame statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt wath 1n equity

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets agamnst current
tax habilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle 1ts current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Pension contributions
Payments are made to the Company’s stakeholder pension schemes, all defined contribution schemes Amounts are charged to the
ncome statement as ncurred

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use 1n the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheet at their fair value at the date of acquisition, plus any subsequent cast, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised mmpairment loss

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land and properties under construction,
over thewr estimated useful ives, using the straight line method, on the following bases

Buildings 2% - 4%
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 20% - 50%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected usefu! lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where
shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recogmsed In the income statement as an exceptional item

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense n the period n which 1t 1s incurred

An internalty-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group’s own development actvity 1s recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met

® an asset 15 created that can be dentified (such as software and new processes) and 1s techmcally and commercially feasible,

@1t 15 probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits and the Group has available to itself sufficient
resources to complete the development and to subsequently sell and/or use the asset created, and

® the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Internally-generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful tives Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure 15 recognised as an expense in the penod 1n which 1t 15 incurred
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Accounting Policies continued

Intangible assets

Intanigible assets are recognised in respect of contracts, intellectual property nghts and other measurable intangibles arsing

on business combinations The value of these intangible assets 15 determined by the estimated value to the Group going forward
and the intangible assets are wntten off on a straight line basis over the estimated useful Ufe

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment toss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment (if any) An intangible asset with an indefinite useful
Iife 15 tested for impairment annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be impared

Recoverable ameunt 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or subsidhary) 15 estimated to be less than 1ts carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (subsidhary) 1s reduced to 1ts recoverable amount An impairment loss 15 recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset 1s carred at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss 15 treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (subsidiary) 1s increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
deterrmined had no imparment loss been recognised for the asset (subsidiary) 1 prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 15
recogmsed as income immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s carned at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss 15 treated as a revaluation increase

Share-based payments
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’ In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2
has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 May 2006

The Group 1ssues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity settled share-based payments
are measured at farr value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions} at the date of grant The fair value determined
at the grant date of equity-settled share-based payments 15 expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the
Group’s estimate of shares that wilt eventually vest and adjusted for the non market-based vesting conditions

Fair value 1s measured by use of the Quoted Compames Alhance binormal model The expected life used in the models has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the effect of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations

A liability equal to the portion of the goods and services received 1s recognised at the current fair value determined at each
balance sheet date for cash-settled, share-based payments

The cost of share-based payments 1s charged to the income statement with a corresponding credit applied to the share option
reserve The appropnate element of the reserve 1s transferred to the retained profit of the Group when the share options to
which the reserve relates vest

Exceptional items

Cohort’s trade 15 the provision of technical advice and support, and the design, development and manufacture of miche products
As part of 1ts operations, the Group may dhspose of or recognise iImpairment, of subsidianes, or significant parts of subsidianes,
associates (including joint ventures and investments) and fixed assets as well as cther sigmficant non-trading transactions inctuding
sigmficant restructuring costs, either as part of continuing operations or discontinued operattons

These items form part of the Group's operating activities and are reported 1n arriving at the Group's profit from operations, however,
management does not consider these items to be part of trading activities The gains or losses on such 1tems can be sigmficant and
anse 1n different reporting penods and would consequently have a matenal impact upon the absolute amount of and trend n the
Group’s trading profit from operations

Any gains or losses (including transaction costs) on these non-trading items are disclosed as a separate line item (in aggregate)
n the income statement with analysis 1 a note to the accounts

Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and Judgements that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabihties, revenue and expenses, some of which are difficult, complex, or subjective For this reason actual
results could differ from estimates and this might have a matenal impact on our results

Management has identified the fellowing areas where critical assumptions or estimates are made
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Significant estimates and judgements (continued)

Revenue and profit recogmtion on long-term contracts

The Group applies a consistent process to accounting for revenue and profit recogmtion on long-term contracts In making these
estumates and judgements, management relies on underlying processes and procedures and makes use of internal and external
expert resource In arrving at the final accounting estimate or judgement These balances are regularly reviewed to ensure the
value 1s approprnate The sensitvity 1n applying these judgements 1s broad with estimates usually being contract specific

Acquisition of wntangibles

Intangibles other than goodwill that are abtained through acquisition are capitalised on the balance sheet These intangibles are valued
on acquisition using a discounted cash flow methodology which depends on future assumptions about the revenie from contracts,
prces and costs and on the Group's cost of capital These assumptions reftect management’s best estimates but depend on nherent
uncertainties which may not be wathin the control of management

Recoverability of goodwll

We have significant goodwill balances the life of which we consider to be indefinite We assess annually the recoverabibity of the
balance, or more frequently in the event of an occurrence ndicating impairment The assessment involves comparing the carrying
amount of the asset with 1ts recoverable amount, which 1s typically 1ts value 1 use Value 1n use 1s deterrined using discounted
cash flow techmgues that involve the estimation of future cash flows over a tong perod and an appropnate discount rate to apply

Future cash flows are estimated based on histoncal expenence, intemal estimates and data from external sources Such estimates
are subject to change as a result of changes 1n economic and competitive conditions Higher estimates of future cash flows will increase
the value i use of goodwill, but lower estimates of cash flows will reduce the value 1n use and increase the risk of iImpairment

Discount rates (weighted average cost of capital) are applied to the cash flows to arnve at the value in use An increase In the discount
rate will reduce the value 1n use of the goodwill, and therefore increases the nsk of the value 1n use falling below the carrying value
and resulting in the requirement fer an impatrment provision A reduction in the discount rate decreases the likelihood of impairment

Future changes tn interest rates, the premium that markets place on equity investments relative to nsk free rates and the specific
assessment of the capital markets as to our risk relative to other companies can affect our discount rate Increases i interest rates
or the nsk premiums applied by capital markets would result 1n an increase 1n our discount rate and vice versa These factors are
largely outside our control or ability to predict and can therefore have a significant impact on the estmated fair vatue of goodwill

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue Cost of fimshed goods and work in progress includes overheads
appropnate to the stage of manufacture Net realisable value 1s based upon estimated selling price less further cost expected to
be ncurred to completion and disposal Provision 15 made for obsolete and slow-moving 1tems

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation Prowisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabibities are recognised tn the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at imtial recogmtion at fair value Appropriate allowances for estimated wrrecoverable amounts
are recogmsed 1n the income statement when there 15 objective evidence that the asset 1s impaired The allowance recognised
1s measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the estimated recoverable amount

Long-term contracts are assessed on a contract by contract basis and reflected in the profit and loss account by recording revenue
and related costs as contract actvity progresses Revenue 1s ascertained in a manner appropnate to the stage of completion of the
contract, and credit taken for profit earned to date when the outcome of the contract can be assessed with reasonable certainty
The amount by which revenue exceeds payments an account 1s classified as ‘amounts recoverable on contracts’ and included within
trade and other recewvables, to the extent that payments on account exceed relevant revenue, the excess 1s included as an advance
receipt within trade and other payables The amount of long-term contracts, at cost net of amounts transferred to cost of sales,
less provision for foreseeable losses and payments on account not matched with revenue, 15 included within trade and other recevables
as amounts recoverable on contracts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and on-demand deposits, and other short-term highly bquid investments that are
readily convertibte to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insigmficant nsk of changes In value Deposits included wathin
cash and cash equivalents have less than three months to matunty
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Accounting Policies continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financiat habilities and equnty instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of 1ts hablivies

Bank borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds recewved, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accrual basis in the
mncome statement using the effective mterest rate method and are disclosed within accruals to the extent they are not settled
n the penod, unless the loan terms provide for the interest to be added to the principal, in which case the interest 1s added
to the carrying amount of the instrument to wiich it pertains

Trade payables
Trade payables are imtially measured at fair value

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds recewved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group’s activities expose 1t to the financial nsks of changes n foreign currency exchange rates and nterest rates The Group
uses foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures The Group does not use denvative
financial instruments for speculative purposes

Changes 1n the fair value of denvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are

recognised directly 1n equity and the ineffective portion 1s recogmsed immediately 1n the income statement If the cash flow hedge

of a firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition of an asset or a hability, then, at the time the asset or

hability 15 recognised, the associated gamns or losses on the denvative that had previcusly been recogmised 1n equity are included

In the 1mual measurement of the asset or iability For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a hability, amounts
deferred n equity are recognised 1n the income statement in the same penod in winch the hedged item affects net income

Changes 1n the fair value of denvative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recogmised in the income
statement as they anse

Joint ventures
The Group accounts for joint ventures where 1t has a participating interest using the equity method of accounting and discloses
the net investment In non-current assets

Where the investment 1n a joint venture 15 negative, the negative investment, to the extent 1t 15 a iability of the Group 1s offset
aganst any trade and other recevables held by the Group in respect of that joint venture

The Group accounts for joint ventures 1n which it no longer has a participating interest by recagnising any investment and assets
or habihiies due to or from the Group

Standards and interpretations issued at 30 April 2010 not applied to these financial statements
The following changes and amendments to IFRS that have not been reflected in these financial statements and are likely to have
animpact on the Group i the future

Impact on the Group

Standard Timing Effect Financial effect

IFRS 9 ‘Financial First apply to year First of 3 phases to replace I1AS 39 ‘Financial No financial impact May require

Instruments” ended 30 April 2014 Covenants Recognition and Measurement’ further disctosure but Group has
Early adoption permitted Plan is for all of 1AS 39 to be replaced duning few financial assets

2010 by extending IFRS 9 It simplifies the
categones of financial asset classification relating
it to the cash flow characteristics of the asset

The above standard wall not apply to the Group's intenm statement for six months ended 31 October 2011 to be published 1n
December 2011

A number of other standard amendments and IFRICs (International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee) have been 1ssued
and are yet to be applied by the Group

As discussed elsewhere the Group has adopted IFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business Combinations and amendments to 1AS 27° early, applying
these standards from 1 May 2009
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Advisers

Registered Company Number of Cohort ple

05684823

Cohort plc 15 a company registered n England and Wales

Nominated Adviser and Broker
Investec

2 Gresham Street

London EC2Y 7QP

Registrars

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park
Fenay Bndge
Huddersfield HD8 LA

Public and Investor Relations
Hogarth Partnership Limited

Auditor 1 London Bridge

KPMG Audit Plc London SE1 9BG

Chartered Accountants

Arlington Business Park Bankers

Theale RBS NatWest,

Reading RG7 45D Abbey Gardens
4 Abbey Street

Legal Advisers Reading RG1 3BA

Olswang

90 High Holborn

London WC1V 6XX

Shareholder Information and Financial Calendar

Shareholders’ Enquiries

If you have an enquiry about the Company's busmness, or about something affecting you as a shareholder (other than quenes which
are dealt with by the Registrar), you should contact the Company Secretary by letter to the Company’s registered office or by e-mail
to info@cohortplc com

Share Register
Capita Registrars matntam the register of members of the Company

If you have any questiens about your personal holding of the Company’s shares, please contact

Capita Registrars

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road

Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Tel 0870 162 3100 (for calls within the UK)
+44 20 8639 2157 (for calls from overseas)

If you change your name or address or 1f details on the envelope enclosing this Report, including your postcode, are ncorrect
or incomplete, please notify the Registrars in wnting

Daily Share Price Listings

The Financial Times - AIM, Aerospace and defence
The Times - Engineenng

Daily Telegraph - AlM section

Financial Calendar
Annual General Meeting 2 September 2010
Final dwidend payable 8 September 2010

Expected announcement of results for the year ending 30 Apni 2011

Half year announcement December 2010
Full year preliminary announcement June 2011

Registered Office

Cohort plc

Arlington House

1025 Arlington Business Park
Theale

Reading RGY 454




